ANNUAL
REPORT

2018-19

N\
2 MANAPPURAM gylo])l(S

NNNNNNNNNNN




N\
# MANAPPURAM J3Te]13

BOARD'’S REPORT

To,
The Members
Manappuram Home Finance Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 9th Annual Report on the working of the Company with the Audited
Accounts and the Report of the Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

1. Financial Results at a glance
Description 2018-19 2017-18
Total Revenue 66,28,11,046 51,51,18,399
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 3,32,39,450 (4,72,80,774)
Provision for Taxes/Deferred tax 27,20,000 (27,44,770)
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,05,19,450 (4,45,36,004)
Profit / (Loss) b/f from previous years (16,05,46,563) (11,60,10,559)
Amount available for appropriations (13,00,27,113) (16,05,46,563)
Less: Transfer to Special Reserve (Under section 29C of (61,03,890) 0
the NHB Act, 1987)
Less: Proposed dividend tax 0 0
Balance carried forward to next year (13,61,31,003) (16,05,46,563)

During the year under review, Company has achieved AUM of Rs 518.76 Crores by the end of FY 2018-19
spreads over 35 branches. The total revenue stands to Rs. 66.28 Crores includes income from other sources
comes to Rs. 0.02 Crores which is in the form of dividend from mutual Fund. Net Owned Fund (NOF) stood at
Rs 189.23 Crores as on 31st March 2019.

Outlook for 2019-20

The coming year will see consolidation in the real estate sector as larger players will peak in strength and
smaller ones will be eroded or will align with the established ones. Owing to stringent RERA norms, only
credible developers who conduct their business with transparency will survive in the future and will be able

to navigate the roadmap. This is good from a buyer’s perspective as one is assured of quality product within
stipulated timelines.

In case “buying a house” features in your New Year resolutions, the current environment presents a very good
opportunity to take the plunge as attractive offers are available and interest rates are at their lowest levels. We
certainly hope these factors lead to more fence-sitters spring into action in 2018.

2. Dividend

Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under consideration.

3. Raising of Additional Capital

During the year 2018-19 your company has increased the Authorised and paid up share capital from
Rs.100,00,00,000/- to Rs.200,00,00,000/- by issue of 10,00,00,000 equity shares

4. Reserves

During the year the company has incurred a profit of around Rs. 3.05 Crores, Further, the company has trans-
ferred Rs. 0.61 Crores to Special Reserve as per section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987.
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5. Acceptance of Deposits

The company being a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company (HFC) has not accepted public deposit
during the year.

6. Compliance with Directions/Guidelines of National Housing Bank (NHB)

Company has adhered to the prudential guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank (NHB) under its Di-
rections 2010, as amended from time to time.

Company has complied with the Guidelines and Directions issued by the NHB on Investments, Fair Practices
Code and Customer Complaints Redressal Mechanism, Know Your Customer (KYC) and Anti Money Launder-
ing Guidelines and other related aspects.

7. Compliance with the Secretarial Standards

The Company is in Compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India.

8. Directors
Retirement of Directors by Rotation

Mr. V.PNandakumar, Director of the company whose period of office is liable to be determination by retire-
ment by rotation and offers himself for reappointment.

Re-Appointment of Mr. T Balakrishanan as Independent Director

Mr. T Balakrishnan (DIN No. 00052922), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive &In-
dependent Director) on 18th March 2014 and confirmed as Director(Independent) for a period of five years
from the date of AGM ie 21.07.2014 in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and whose term
of office expires at the coming Annual General Meeting be and is hereby re appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company whose period of office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of directors
by rotation.”

9. Auditors

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration Number-117366W, 12,Dr.Anni Besant
Road, Opp. Shiv Sagar Estate, Worli, Mumbai-400018, shall continue to hold the office of statutory auditors
till the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

10. Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013,the details forming part of the extract of the
Annual Return, as provided under Section 92(3) read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, are posted in the website of the Company www.manappuramhomefin.com.

11. Director & KMP changes

Dr.Sumitha Jayasankar, Director has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 22nd March 2019.

12. Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company as per
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Directors of the Company meet with the
criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149(6).
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13. Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance and it aspires to
benchmark itself with the best practices in this regard.

Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is governed by the relevant provisions of the Com-
panies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. The Company’s Board consists of Executive, Non Executive
and Independent directors with expertise and experience in the field of banking, finance, operations manage-
ment, engineering, auditing and/or accounting. As on 31st March 2019, the Company’s Board consisted of

4 Directors. Brief details on name of the Director, category, number of directorships, meeting and attendance

etc are given below:-

Name of Di- Category of | Total no of | No. of Board | Details of membership in | Number of
rector & DIN Directors meetings | Meetings Committees of the Board * | Directorships
Attended in other
Companies**
Chairman Member Member
Mr. V. P Promoter &
Nandakumar Non-Executive
Chairman 7 7 4 12
DIN:00044512
Mr. Munish Non Independ-
Dayal ent & Non 7 7 - - 8
DIN:01683836 Executive
Mr. Gautam Non Independ-
Saigal ent &
DIN:00640229 | Non Execufive 7 7 3 3
Dr Sumitha Non Execu-
Jayasankar tive(Resigned
DIN:03625120 w.e.f 22nd 7 2 NIL 2
March 2019
Mr. T.Balakr- Independent
ishnan Non-Executive 7 7 6 7
DIN:00052922
Mr Jeevandas Executive 7 7 i ) 1
Narayan Director-MD
* Includes Audit, Remuneration & stake holders committee
o Directorship in both listed & unlisted companies including our company

b). Number of meetings of the Board

During the Financial year 2018-19, Board met Seven times as noted below:-

24th April 2018

16th May 2018

06th August 2018
02nd November 2018

01st February 2019
27th February 2019
22nd March 2019

c) Disclosure on Composition of Audit Committee

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Presently
the Committee is chaired by Mr. Gautam Saigal (Non Executive Director) & Mr. Munish Dayal (Non Executive Non Independ-
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ent) and Mr.T.Balakrishnan (Non Executive & Independent), as Members. The Audit Committee acts in accordance with
the Terms of Reference as approved by the Board and as per the Policy on Internal Guidelines on corporate Governance.
Audit Committee has met four times during FY-2018-19 and all the recommendations made by the Committee to the Board
were duly accepted. Details of the meeting along with the attendance of the members are as follows:-

AUDIT COMMITTEE DATES

Name of Directors Name of Directors | Name of Directors | Name of Directors | Name of Directors

Gautam Saigal—Present

Chairman v v v v
T.Balakrishnan-Member

g\; Munish Dayal-Mem- Absent v v v

The brief description of the scope of the Audit Committee Charter are as follows:-

*  The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the company;

*  Examination of the financial statements and the Auditor’s report thereon;

* Review and evaluation of the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal financial control and risk management
systems of the Company

*  Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

* Reviewing the scope and plans of statutory, internal, and systems audits, and discussing the main audit findings
and comments with the Management and auditors to focus on any significant area of concern and to ensure
expeditious rectification of short comings, if any, noticed;

*  Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

*  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

*  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary

d) Disclosure on Composition of Nomination Compensation and Corporate Governance Committee
The Company has constituted NCCGC in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.Presently the Committee
is chaired by Mr. T.Balakrishnan —Independent Director &, Mr V.PNandakumar-Non executive Director & Mr. Munish Dayal

—Non-Executive Director as members

The NCCG Committee acts in accordance with the Terms of Reference made by the Board and as per the Policy on Internal
Guidelines on corporate Governance.

NCCGC has met one Times during FY-2018-19.Details of the meeting attended by the members are as under:-

Members NOMINATION COMPENSATION AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE DATE

16th May 2018

T.Balakrishnan,Chairman v
V.PNandakumar v
Mr. Munish Dayal Absent

The brief description of the scope of the Committee are as follows:-

*  Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and those who may be appointed in senior management;

*  Undertaking the process of due diligence to determine the suitability of Directors based upon qualification, track record,
integrity and other fit and proper criteria and recommending the Director’s appointment and continuation as a Director

*  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;
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e Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

*  Ensuring that such persons meet the relevant criteria prescribed under applicable laws;

*  Reviewing the said criteria annually

*  Fixing / re-fixing the remuneration of the Executive Directors (Whole-time Directors) of the Company; and

*  Approving the remuneration / any change therein of the managerial personnel of the Company when there are no
profits / inadequate profits / negative effective capital as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

e) Asset Liability Management Committee

The Company has constituted an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). The Committee, functions under the su-
pervision of the Board and within the regulatory framework.

The Committee will, inter-alia, specifically oversee the following:

a Compliance with NHB Directions/Guidelines for Asset Liability Management
b) Debt Composition and plan of the Company for fund raising
c) Tenor of the Liabilities.

The objective of this policy is to create an institutional mechanism to compute and monitor periodically the maturity pattern
of the various liabilities and assets of MAHOFIN to :

a. Ascertain in percentage terms the nature and extent of mismatch in different maturity buckets, especially the 1-14 and
15-31 days bucket, which would indicate the structural liquidity.
The extent and nature of cumulative mismatch in different buckets indicative of short term dynamic liquidity and

c. The residual maturity pattern of re pricing of assets and liabilities which would show the likely impact of movement of
interest rate in either direction on profitability.

ALCO has met four Times during FY-2018-19. Details of the meeting attended by the members are as under:-

ALCO Committee dates
14th June 2018 | 21st September 2018 | 11th December 2018 | 13th March 2019
Mr.V.PNandakumar v v v v

Mr.Subhash Samant _

Members

<
<
<

Mr.Jeevandas Narayan

) ) ) )
A 4 v A 4 h 4

Mr. Vipul Patel
Mr.Manish Malakan v v v v
v v v v

f) Risk Management Committee

The Company has constituted risk management Committee to review the Risk Management Policy, document and improve
risk management practices, ensure appropriate / adequate reporting to the Board, review the functioning of the Risk Man-
agement Department and any other matter as the Committee may deem fit. The Committee is involved in the process of
identification, measurement, monitoring and mitigation of the various risks faced by the Company. The Committee meets
periodically and reports to the top Management and Board. Committee shall function as per the charter of Risk Management
Committee. Member representing risk department has made quarterly presentation on the Risk management.

Name of the Member Position Category
Mr.Gautam Saigal Chairman Non-Executive Director
Mr.T.Balakrishnan Member Independent Director
Mr.Munish Dayal Member Non-Executive Director

Head - Risk Management Department

Composition of Committee:
The broad responsibilities of the Risk Management Department are:
i) Implementing the Risk Management Policy as approved by the Board of Directors. Reviewing the provi

sions of the policy periodically and recommending to the Board of Directors appropriate modifications or
improvements if required.
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ii) Provide a methodology to identify, quantify and analyze the company’s exposure to loss arising out of
probable uncertain event.
iii)  Instilling a culture of risk awareness across the length and breadth of the organization.

iv)]  To develop and update a complete system for recording, monitoring, and communicating the organiza
tion’s risk exposure/issues to Top Management and Board/Committee of Board.

v) Designing or assist in the designing of work processes or activities having risk implications, getting them
approved, assisting in implementation of the processes and engaging in periodical review of the effective
ness of such processes.

vi)  Development of ‘models’ for assessment of loss in projected circumstances. Limiting unfavorable outcome
by containing risks and suggesting mitigation therefore.

Risk Committee has met two times during FY-2018-19.Details of the meeting attended by the members are as under:-

Members RISK COMMITTEE DATES
06th August 2018 01st February 2019
Mr.Gautam Saigal Vv v
Mr.T.Balakrishnan Vv v
Mr.Munish Dayal v v
g) Investment Committee

The Company has also constituted Investment Committee to consider safety, liquidity, credit risk, Interest Rate Risk and
yield of the investment while making investments . The Investment Committee shall function as per the Investment
Credit Committee Charter .Committee consisting of the following members:

Name of the Position Category
Member

Mr. V.PNandakumar Chairman Chairman

Mr.Subbhash Samant CEO Member

Mr.Vipul Patel Chief Financial Officer Member

The investment portfolio will be managed by the Chief Financial Officer, who will strive to invest with the judgment and
care that prudent individuals would exercise in the execution of their own affairs, to maintain the safety of principal,
maintain liquidity to meet cash flow needs and to provide competitive investment returns for MAHOFIN.

h) Management Committee

The Company has constituted the management Committee for assisting the Board in the day to day operations and for
the smooth functioning of the company on 29th October 2014. A committee of the Board and CEO is to be constituted
and shall be responsible for overseeing and dealing with operational matters from time to time. The committee shall

meet as and when it becomes necessary to consider the urgent matters coming up between two board meetings.

Composition of Committee:

Name of the Position Category
Member

Mr. V.PNandakumar Chairman Member

Mr.Jeevandas Narayan Non-Executive Director Member

Mr.Gautam Saigal Non-Executive Director Member

A summary of the business transacted by the committee as initialed by the Company Secretary shall be presented to
the succeeding board meeting for the purpose of noting and recording.

i) IT strategy Committee
The Company has also constituted IT strategy Committee in line with the NHB circular as IT Governance is an inte-

gral part of corporate governance and so as to advice on the strategic direction on IT and to review IT investments on
Board'’s behalf. The IT Strategy Committee shall meet at an appropriate frequency but not more than six months shall
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elapse between two meetings.
Members

Mr. T.Balakrishnan, Chairman
Mr. V.PNandakumar-Member
Mr. Munish Dayal -Member

Mr. Jeevandas Narayan-Member

14. Policy on Board Composition, Compensation & Evaluation Criteria & Related Disclosure

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy on directors appointment and remuneration for directors, KMP and other
employees including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, and independence of directors as laid
down by the nomination and remuneration committee of the board which is attached to this report as Annexure 1.
The Board has also adopted some criteria for evaluating its own performance and of its committees and individual
directors viz as Structure & Composition, extent of fulfilment of duties & key responsibilities Board process, information
& functioning, effectiveness of meeting, relationship with Board & management, attendance, Professional Conduct,
Duties, Role & functions, contribution to the Board, Committee &management.

15. During the year 2018-19, the Company has not provided/made any loan, guarantee as per section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013. However Company has invested Rs 9.63 crores in top 10 mutual funds.

16. During the year 2018-19, Auditors has not reported any fraud neither to the Central Government, nor to the
Audit Committee constituted under section 177 of Companies Act 2013.

17. Pursuant to section 35b (ii) of the Companies (Amendment) Bill 2016, Company has been made Annual evalu-
ation of the performance of the Board ,its Committees and of individual directors.

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTORS AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Year, the Company did not enter into any materially significant transactions with related parties, ie., its Pro-
moters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, conflicting with the Company’s interests as laid down
under section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013.

Approval of Audit Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any related party transaction as per the
applicable provisions of Companies Act ,2013.

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were
on an arm'’s length basis. Form AOC-2 ,as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, read with Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts )Rules 2014,is annexed as part of Board Report.(Annexure-I)

Further, as mandated under the Directions issued by the National Housing Bank vide Notification No.NHB.HFC.CG-
DIR.1/MD&CEQ/2016 dated 09th February 2017, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions

and the Policy is Annexed as part of this Boards Report.(Annexure - 1l1). The same has also been hosted on the Com-
pany’s Website.

19. Material Changes

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred between
the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

20. Credit Rating & migration of rating

CARE, CRISIL & BRICKWORKS has assigned AA-, A+ & A+ rating for Bank borrowings respectively and CRISIL has also
assigned A1+ for commercial paper.

21. Conservation of energy, & Technology absorption
Since the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and its operations are not energy intensive, the
disclosure relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m)

read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

The Company actively pursues a culture of technology adoption, leveraging on the advancements in technology
to serve customers better, manage process more efficiently and economically and strengthen control systems.
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22, Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
During the year 2018-19, there were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

23. During the year 2018-19, the Company has not paid any Remuneration to the Directors except the sitting fee
for attending the Board & Committee meetings.

24. During the year 2018-19, Company has not entered on any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the non
executive directors of the Company.

25. STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy wherein all material risks faces by the Company viz.
Credit Risk, Operational Risk, Regulatory Risk, Price and Interest rate Risk are identified and assessed. Risk Manage-
ment Department headed and managed by competent professionals for identification, assessment and managing/
mitigating risk related issues across the organization. For each of the Risks identified in the process, corresponding
controls are assessed and policies and procedure are put in place for monitoring, mitigating and reporting risk on a
periodic basis.

The Company has constituted the risk management Committee on its Board meeting 11/02/2016. Head Risk will be a
permanent invitee of the Risk Management Committee. Company Secretary shall be Secretary of the RMC.

26. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (POSH Act 2013)

The Company has in place a Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) as been set up to redress com-
plaints, as and when received regarding Sexual Harassment and all employees are covered under this policy. The pol-
icy has been posted on the Company’s website. There was no Sexual harassment cases filed during the year 2018-19.

27. Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a whistle Blower policy and established the necessary vigil mechanism for Directors and
employees to report genuine concerns about un-ethical behavior, pursuant to the provision of section 177(9) and (10)
of the Companies Act,2013. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who
use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the designated Member of the Audit Committee in ap-
propriate or exceptional cases. It is hereby affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the
Audit Committee. There were no complaints from the employees during the year 2018-19.

The whistle Blower policy has been hosted on the Company’s Website.

28. Significant Material Orders

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators courts or tribunals
against the Company, impacting its going concern status or its future operations.

29. The Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
hereby declares that :-

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b.  the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made Judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d.  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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30. Disclosure of contingent liabilities:-
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
31. Applicability of CSR provision under Sec 135

The provisions of sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 pertaining to the Corporate Social Responsibility are not appli-
cable to the Company.

32. Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Board’s Report.(Annexure-II)
33. Secretarial Auditors

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, the Company has appointed M/s KSR
& Co, Practicing Company Secretary firm, for conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-
19. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Year, in Form MR-3 as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
to this Board’s Report (Annexure IlI).

There is no qualification, observation or remark in the Secretarial Audit Report requiring explanation by the Board of
Directors.

34. Acknowledgement

Your Directors acknowledge and place on record its sincere appreciation and gratitude to the employees of the com-
pany at all levels for their dedicated service and commitments, to the National Housing Bank , Governments and
its statutory agencies for the support, guidance and co-operation, to the Investors, shareholders Bankers and other
financial institutions and customers for the whole hearted support and confidence reposed on the company and the
management and to the general public at large for their blessings and good wishes the company has been receiving
in good measure over the years.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Manappuram Home Finance Limited

S/d
V.PNandakumar
Place: Valapad Chairman
Date:07/05/2019
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Annexure-1

# MANAPPURAM

.

Particulars Pursuant to clause (H) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules ,2014

Form for Disclosure of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act ,2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso

thereto.
1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis.
All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm'’s length
basis.
2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length basis
were not material in nature. However the transaction details are as follows.
SL NO Particulars Details
a) Names (s) of the related party & nature of re- | a)
lations
1.  Short Term loan of Rs.50 cr from MAFIL
2. Sharing of office 365 EA and Micro Soft facility
b) Nature of Contracts/arrangements/transactions 3. Enhancing MAFIL credit facility limit from Rs.50 cr to
Rs.150 cr
4. Sharing of new MAFIL premises at Mumbai
5.Purchase of MACOM Legal Management System
<) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/trans- | 1. Duration not specified. Can be terminated on mutual
action consent of both the parties.
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | Payment under SLA:Rs.28,08,731/-
or transaction including the value, if any Loan repayment to MAFIL:Rs.1,61,00,00,000/-
Interest on loan paid to MAFIL:Rs.2,39,43,403/-
e) Date of approval by the Board . SLA lastly modified on 12/02/2019
f) a) ¢  Loan from MAFIL approved on:16/05/2018
¢ Sharing of office 365 EA and Micro Soft facility from
MAFIL approved on 16/05/2018
¢ Enhancing MAFIL credit facility limit from Rs.50 cr to
Rs.150 cr approved on 02/11/2018
¢ Sharing of new MAFIL premises at Mumbai
approved on 02/11/2018
¢ Purchase of MACOM Legal Management System
approved on 02/11/2018
a) Amount paid as advance ,if any Nil
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Annexure |l

Manappuram Home Finance Limited
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

I Industry Structure and Developments
a. Macro-economic environment

Housing sales jumped by nearly 8 per cent in first three quarters of 2018. NBFC crisis hijacks Indian real estate’s
growth story, fallout into 2019. General elections will play a role in the sector’s fate in 2019. In the last couple of years,
affordable housing is the only segment where transactions have happened in real estate.

As far as affordable housing is concerned, the 95% of the country’s population consists of the lower middle class or
economically weaker section. These sections are driving demand in affordable housing. Moreover, in the past few
years, the government’s focus and incentives to developers as well as homebuyers was why demand in the segment
went up. Affordable Housing segment is not just real estate, it is the need of the masses.

In the true sense, the real estate market is now emerging in a different manner and in the next 10 years, it will see a
turnaround. The premium segment will also see demand, but affordable housing will drive the sector.

As per the industry report, affordable housing witnessed a growth of 22% in sales during 2018. Even this number is not
big because there are few developers in this segment at present. Demand is huge and supply is limited. Once more
developers start offering projects in this segment, it will witness tremendous growth.

The government should also consider putting affordable housing in the list of priority sector lending for banks as well
as other financial institutions. Easy availability of loan will boost the sector and make it more feasible for developers
to enter it.

The NBFC crisis will surely have a fallout effect in the current year. However, trends in the Indian housing market and
data indicate that there can be a 15-18% increase in the number of new residential launches in H1 2019. The resultant
supply would be anywhere between 96,000 to 98,600 units. This calculation is basis the fact that new residential units
across the top 7 cities increased from about 75,970 units in H1 2017 to almost 83,520 units in H1 2018.

Despite the teething pains of game-changing policies like RERA and GST in 2017 and early in 2018, project launch-
es increased by 18% in the first three quarters of 2018 as against the same period in 2017. Considering this growth
pattern and the fact that the real estate sector is looking more upbeat in terms of overall consumer sentiments, build-
ers will focus on launching more new projects across the cities in 2019. However, the ongoing consolidation process
brought on by the NBFC crisis as well as RERA and GST will cause a lot of this supply to change hands.

Unsold inventory has declined from 7.44 lakh units in Q3 2017 to around 6.87 lakh units in Q3 2018 in the top 7
cities. Meanwhile, the recent consumer survey also indicates that after a prolonged period of fence-sitting, as much
as 61% buyers with genuine purchase intentions hope to buy homes in the next 12 months. The conducive Indian real
estate environment over the last few quarters has already prompted as many as 24% of the polled buyers to take the
plunge.

b. Demand for Affordable Housing Finance

The government has been very focused on the housing sector. People have been encouraged to buy houses in the
expectation that by giving a boost to the housing sector, effectively, it will give a boost to all the core sectors in the
economy — cement, steel, power, paint -- various ancillary industries associated with housing. When housing gets a
boost, different allied industries also get a boost and lots of jobs are generated for construction workers, masons,
carpenters, plumbers and engineers.

The government has provided fiscal benefits on housing loans and a CLSS or a subsidy scheme is also available for
home buyers. And last but not the least, one of the most important factors for the growth is the fact that two-thirds
of the population in India is below 35 years of age. India has a young population compared to the rest of the world.
The demand for housing in India continues to be very robust. In the affordable housing segment, average loan size is
Rs 27 lakh. Affordable housing segment means borrowers in the lower income group and in the economically weaker
section. They account for 18% in value terms of the loans and in number terms, as much as 37%.

According to the McKinsey Report (2010), India will have 40 per cent of its population living in urban areas with 68

cities with one million plus population (from 42 currently) by 2030. It estimates that the demand for affordable housing
will increase to 38 million housing units in 2030 from 19 million in 2012.
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The Government of India along with the governments of the respective states has taken several initiatives to encour-
age the development in the sector. The Smart City Project, where there is a plan to build 100 smart cities, is a prime
opportunity for the real estate companies. Below are some of the other major Government Initiatives:

c. Government measures to encourage Affordable Housing

. Under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) Urban, more than 6.85 million houses have been sanctioned up
to December 2018.

. In February 2018, creation of National Urban Housing Fund was approved with an outlay of Rs 60,000 crore
(US$ 9.27 billion).

. Under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) Urban 1,427,486 houses have been sanctioned in 2017-18.
In March 2018, construction of additional 3,21,567 affordable houses were sanctioned under the scheme.

In the Union Budget 2017-18, a number of measures to boost affordable housing, which include: (i) granting infra-
structure status to affordable housing; (ii) increasing the time for project completion to affordable housing promoters
from earlier three years to five years; (iii) providing a year’s time to developers to pay tax on notional rental income
on completed but unsold units; (iv) reducing the tenure for long-term capital gains for affordable housing from three
to two years; (v) revision of the qualifying criteria for affordable housing from saleable area to the carpet area; (vi)
announcement of a new CLSS for the MIG with a provision of “1,000 crore; and (vii) refinancing facility by Nation-
al Housing Bank (NHB) for individual loans for the affordable housing segment. Apart from the Centre, some State
Governments, viz., Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh and Gujarat are also encouraging affordable housing by providing
rebates on stamp duty rates levied on housing for the EWS, low and middle-income groups.

i Opportunities & Threats

l. Strength: Strong Capitalization, Parent Company Brand & Network, experienced professionals,
Digitalization, Government Initiative.

Il.  Weakness: Long term fund, Narrow profit margin, hiring best talent, High Operating Cost, High Rate
of Interest

lll. Opportunities: Increasing urbanisation, rising affordability, increased penetration in housing.
Govt. of India has introduced scheme for Middle Income Group (MIG) Ill for State of Gujarat, wherein
the business opportunities in the Gujarat has been increased.

IV.  Threats: Slowdown in economic and income contraction, High Construction Cost, High Land Value,
High competition & new entrants, High Registration Fees & Stamp Duty, Maintaining desired asset
quality, Real Estate Regulation Act & GST impact, Early transfer of the loan with another lender for
lower interest rate.

Recent regulatory measures:

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY): A Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS) is being implemented by the
Government of India with effect from 17th June 2015, PMAY (U) mission guidelines have been amended from time
to time with the intention to ensure that the benefits of the schemes reach to the vast segment of population espe-
cially to those coming from downtrodden society.

The Scheme Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana, Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme for Middle Income Group has been further
extended till March 2020.

Apart from the above, the RBI has also taken various policy measures to promote affordable housing. First, in July 2014,
the RBI defined affordable housing loans as eligible under priority sector lending, as also housing loans to individuals up
to “50 lakhs for houses of values up to " 65 lakhs located in the six metropolitan centres (Mumbai, New Delhi, Chennai,
Kolkata, Bengaluru and Hyderabad) and " 40 lakhs for houses of values up to “50 lakhs in other centres for purchase/
construction of dwelling unit per family. Second, it allowed banks to issue long term bonds (of minimum 7 years maturity)
to finance loans to affordable housing and exempt such bonds from the computation of adjusted net bank credit (ANBC).
Third, the RBI allowed the banks to provide home loans up to 90 per cent for properties that cost up to * 30 lakh in October
2015.7 Fourth, the RBI also modified the provisioning or risk-weight norms for home loans to make them cheaper - it
cut the standard asset provisioning on housing loans to 0.25 per cent from 0.4 per cent in June 7, 2017. In its Monetary
Policy Statement of October 2017, the RBI has indicated that faster rollout of affordable housing program with time
bound single window clearances and rationalisation of high stamp duties by the state governments can support growth.
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. Segment wise or Product wise performance

Affordable Housing Finance Company (A-HFC) Industry Overview

Asset Quality of HFCs, by and large, have been stable with gross NPAs at 1.0 % as on date, despite Demonetization,
RERA and GST. However, the asset quality of some of the affordable housing companies have deteriorated in the recent
past owing to aggressive growth, bad underwriting and to an extent seasoning of portfolio. Having said that, strong
monitoring/control processes of HFCs, borrower’s own equity in the properties, large % of properties financed for
self-occupation, availability of SARFAESI process for recovery and comfort of lending to a secured asset class mitigates
the above concerns to a large extent.

Funding mix for large HFCs continued to be well diversified and they rely more on debt market, while smaller HFCs
rely more on bank borrowings. In FY 2018, there have been quite a few instances of even smaller HFCs accessing the
debt market and multilateral financing agencies. Share of NHB refinance to HFCs has also being going up. There has
been an increase in the share of NCDs and CPs in the overall borrowing mix of HFCs. As regards cost of borrowings,
there was a considerable decline in the cost of borrowings of HFCs till Q2 FY 2018. With interest rates hardening from
Q3 FY 2018, the cost of borrowing is edging upwards more particularly in the case of HFCs with a higher share of
short-term borrowings in their overall borrowing mix.

V. Outlook:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has given its approval for the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)
platform which will help in allowing all kinds of investors to invest in the Indian real estate market. It would create an
opportunity worth Rs 1.25 trillion (US$ 19.65 billion) in the Indian market over the years. Responding to an increasingly
well-informed consumer base and, bearing in mind the aspect of globalisation, Indian real estate developers have
shifted gears and accepted fresh challenges. The most marked change has been the shift from family owned business-
es to that of professionally managed ones. Real estate developers, in meeting the growing need for managing multiple
projects across cities, are also investing in centralised processes to source material and organise manpower and hiring
qualified professionals in areas like project management, architecture and engineering.

The growing flow of FDI into Indian real estate is encouraging increased transparency. Developers, in order to attract
funding, have revamped their accounting and management systems to meet due diligence standards.

There is an uncanny similarity between the stock market and the real estate market today. Though the overall equity
market is looking weak, there are several stocks worth investing right now. Similarly, though the broader real estate
market is flat, action is happening at the micro level. There are several pockets across metros and large cities where
property prices are reasonable, and investors can expect good returns.

V. Risk management/ Internal control systems and their adequacy:
The company has adopted risk management practices in its lending operation. Detailed credit and operational proce-
dures are laid out in Board approved Credit and Operation policy and is reviewed periodically. Internal control system
commensurate to the size of the organization and adequate.
VI. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

. Target Areas / segment:
As the company is positioned as an affordable home finance company, the target customer segments are the self-em-
ployed from the unorganised sector who are usually deprived of access to mainstream credit facilities from financial in-
stitutions. The Company has strengthened its presence in its area of operations with a keen emphasis on the unserved
and under-served customer segments.

. Region wise / geographic wise spread
The company has a presence in 35 Indian locations across six states (Maharashtra, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Kar-
nataka, Andhra Pradesh). The total AUM as on 31-03-2019 stands at Rs. 540 crores.
The Company is expanding its horizon to scale up Business to reach Rs. 1000 crores AUM by FY 2019-20. Consider-

ing the increasing urbanization of tier Il and tier Il cities, the company is also planning to cover about the 40 nearby
sub-locations.

. Average ticket size business

The company offers two products — Home Loans and Loan Against Property. Average ticket size of a Home Loan is
about Rs. 9.50 lakhs and for the LAP segment, it stands at about Rs. 7.00 lakhs.
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The target segments are mostly self-employed people in tier Il and tier Il cities who are not served by the mainstream
financial system. Direct branch interaction with customers takes place through on roll direct sales team. Majority of
customer acquisition is made through dedicated in-house sales team who interact with prospective borrowers and stay
close to the market where transactions happened. Credit appraisal process involves meeting with customers, under-
standing cash flows, independent RCU verifications etc. The company is highly focused on a timely collection process.
MAHOFIN uses one of the widely used end-to-end lending management applications to automate and assist business
growth. As a part of digitization, the Company has introduced the “Mobile-Customer Acquisition System” (mCas) for
faster processing of loan applications and “Mobile Collect” (M-Collect) for speeding up collection process.

. Business process / operations /system and IT

. Funding /capitalisation
The company has an arrangement with banks and financial institutions both in the Public and private sectors to aug-
ment growth of the company. The company is in the process of sourcing funds from diversified sources. The company
is well capitalised with the strong support given by its parent company and Current Paid up Capital is Rs.200 crore.
Capital adequacy ratio is around 62%, as against regulatory requirement of 12%.

VIL. Material Development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations Front, including num-
ber of people employed

The company has 400+ highly dedicated and motivated staff who have been contributing relentlessly to the develop-
ment of the organisations. Adequate training on Sales, Collections, KYC & AML, IT Security, Policy & Credit Processing
etc is provided to staff to enhance their knowledge and capabilities.
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Annexure-lll
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019
To,
The Members

Manappuram Home Finance Limited
IV/470A(Old) W638A (new),

Manappuram House, Valappad,
Thrissur, Kerala — 680 567

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Manappuram Home Finance Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 in a manner that provided us reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

On the basis of the above and on our verification of documents, books, papers, minutes, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorised representatives during the conduct of the Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the period covered under the Audit as aforesaid, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board processes, and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

()  The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under

(ii)  The National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

(iii)  The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010.

(iv) Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards under Section 118 of the
Companies Act, 2013

Based on the information and explanation provided, the Company had no transactions during the period covered un-
der the Audit requiring the compliance of the provisions of:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009.
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.

<) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors. The Company is not required to appoint Independent Directors since it is a wholly owned

subsidiary of Manappuram Finance Limited. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period covered under the Audit were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice and detailed notes on Agenda was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule
the Board Meetings. There exists a system for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agen-
da items before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes. We understand that there were no dissenting
members’ views requiring to be captured in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the period covered under the Audit, the Company has made specific actions hav-
ing a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines
referred to above:

(a) The Company vide resolution passed at its Eighth Annual General Meeting held on 06th August, 2018 enhanced
its borrowing powers under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 to Rs.1000 Crores.

(b) The Company has issued and allotted 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each for cash at a par on a rights
basis, aggregating to Rs. 100,00,00,000/- to its holding company vide resolution of its Board of Directors dated
27th February, 2019.

For KSR & Co Company Secretaries LLP

Date: 7th May 2019 S/d
Place: Coimbatore Dr.C.V.Madhusudhanan
Partner

(FCS: 5367; CP: 4408)
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H “ha d tant
Deloitte Lotus Corporate Pork
1" Floor, Wing A - G

H&Skins & sens LLP CTS No.185/4, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Garegacn (East)

Mumibal = 400 063

Maharashtra, India

Tel: + 5 1000
To The Members of Manappuram Home Finance Limited Fax ﬂﬁizz?zi;ﬁm

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manappuram .Home Finance Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2019, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™} and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2019, and
its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our respansibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statements,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

* The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis
and Directers Report (the "Reports”), but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditors’ report.

= Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

= In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

= If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Pregd. Office: Indlabulls Finance Centre, Tower 2, 27 - 32 Floor, Senapat Bapar Marg, Dlphinstone Road [West), Murnbal - 400 013, Maharashira, india
[LLP identification Mo, AAB-8T3T)
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities: selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant te the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whele are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for transition date opening balance sheet
as at 1% April 2017 included in these financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting
previously issued financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 and guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank (NHB)to comply with
Ind AS. The previously issued financial statements were audited by the predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended 31%* March 2017 dated 20™ May 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion
on this financial statements. Adjustments made to the previously issued financial statements to
comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements Is not modified in respect of the above matter on the
comparative financial information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified epinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls aver financial
reporting.
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g) With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 1597(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid /
provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at 31% March 2019;

ii.,  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as
at year-end for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

W

P

Anjum A. Qazi
Partner
{(Membership No. 104968)

Place: Valapad
Date: 7% May 2019
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Manappuram Home
Finance Limited ("the Company”) as of 31% March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India” (the “Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policy, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves perferming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reparting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
OF error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our cpinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over financial
reperting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31% March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note,

For Deloitte Haskins 8 Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

o

njum A. Qazi
Partner
(Membership No. 104968)

Place: Valapad
Date: 7 May 2019
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(i} (2) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assefs,

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the period by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting
under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us
the Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable,

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act.

(iv) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees under the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence reporting under clause 3{iv) of the
Order is not applicable.

(v) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year and no order in this respect has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve
Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunals.

(vi) To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the infoermation and explanations given to us,
in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax and cess to the appropriate authorities,

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess in arrears as at 31% March
2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax and Goods and Service Tax as on 315 March 2019 an
account of disputes.

(viii)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and
financial institution. The Company has not taken any loan from government and financial
institutions, The Company has not issued any debentures,
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{ix) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the money raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company during the
year for the purposes for which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending
application of proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer/
further public offer including debt instruments.

(x) Tothe best of our knowledge and accerding to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year under review the
Company has made private placement of 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares bearing a face value
of Rs.10/-.

In respect of the above issue, we further report that:

a. the requirement of Section 42 of the Act, as applicable, have been complied with; and

b. the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the funds were raised, other than temporary depleyment pending application.

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable,

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

L

Anjum A. Qazi
Partner
(Membership No. 104968)

Place: Valapad
Date: 7% May 2019

MANAPPURAM HOME FINANCE LTD. |I 25



Deloitte Cows Corpire Part

1" Floor, Wing A - G

Haskins & SellsLLP Ly Lo

Goregaon (East)
Mumbal - 400 063

Maharashtra, Indla

Tel: +37 22 6245 1000
Fanc +91 22 6245 1000

Ref: AQ /91
Independent Auditor’'s Certificate

We have examined audited books of accounts as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019,
other relevant records and documents maintained by Manappuram Home Finance Limited ("the
Company”) on a test check basis, in respect of the data furnished in enclosed annual return
("the Return™) for the year ended 31 March 2019 and which has been signed by us for
identification purpose. We certify that to the best of our knowledge and according to
information, explanation given and representation made to us and records by examined by us,
the data furnished in the return read with the notes / comments thereof and annexure 1 to
this certificate.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

w

o+

Anjum A, Qazi
Partner
(Membership No. 104968)
Mumbai, 28 June 2019
UDIN: 1910496BAAAABK 1243

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27 - 32 Foor, Senapatl Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West], Mumbal - 400 013, Maharashtra, Indla,
{LLP identification Mo, AAB-B737)
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Annexure 1

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter reference no.
SB/ 2018-19 / 33 dated 13 November 2018

Management's Responsibility for the compliance

2. The management of the Company is responsible for compliance with all the regulations and
maintenance of proper books of accounts and such other records as per
NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-01/2018 Master Circular - The Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010 dated 2 July 2018 issued by National Housing Bank (NHB) as amended from
time to time (the Directions). The management is responsible for preparation of the Return
and furnishing the information specified in schedule I of the Directions as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2019.

3. The management of the Company is also responsible for interpretation and compliance with
the guidelines and requirements prescribed by the Directions and other applicable regulations
and maintenance of proper books of accounts and other records as per the Directions. This
responsibility includes the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant
supporting records and documents and the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the computation of the data furnished in the Return; preparation
of the Return; applying an appropriate basis of preparation: and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’'s responsibility

4. We have performed test checks on the books of account and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Company produced before us as at and for the year ended 31
March 2019 for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the particulars mentioned
in the Annual return.

3. We have not performed testing to ensure the correctness of following and have relied on details
and representation provided by the management

» The classification of disbursement of loans into urban and rural as included in Part 4.1 of
the Return:

» The classification of disbursement of loans into scheduled Caste and scheduled tribe as
included in Part 4.1 of the Return;

= The classification of disbursement of loans into different purposes i.e. for acquisition/
construction of new houses, for upgradation including major repairs of existing houses and
for purchase of old / existing houses (Resale) as included in part 4.1 of the Return:

* The classification of disbursement of loans based on income of the customer as included in
Part 4.3 of the Return;

« The classification of disbursement of loans based on area of the dwelling units as included
in Part 4.3 of the Return

6. The audited financial statements referred to in paragraph 4 above, have been audited by us,
on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our report dated 7 May 2019. Our audit
of these financial statements was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing and
other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.
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7. We conducted our work in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate
which includes the concepts of test check and materiality. This Guidance Note requires that we
comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(5QC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
formation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Restrictions on Use

9. This certificate has been issued at the request of the Company for submission to NHB in relation
to annual return as on 31 March 2019. This certificate is intended salely for the information
and use of the NHB and is not intended to be and should not be distributed to or used for any
other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for
any other purpose or to any other party te whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come
without our prior consent in writing.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’'s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

/

-

Anjum A. Qazi
Partner
(Membership No. 104968)

Mumbai, 28 June 2019
UDIN: 19104968AARABK1243
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Haskins & Sells LLP CENaiEAConh
Gaoregaon (East)
Murmbai - 400 063
Maharashara, India

Tel: #8122 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

Ref: AQ/92
Independent Auditor's Report

To

The Board of Directors

Manappuram Home Finance Limited
5™ Floor, IV/470A(0ld)

W/638A (New), Manappuram House
Valapad P.O.,

Thrissur - 680567

. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter reference no. SB[/ 2018-19
J 33 dated 13 November 2018.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Compliance

.« Management of the Manappuram Home Finance Limited (“the Company”) is responsible for ensuring
compliance with NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-01/2018 Master Circular - The Housing Finance Companies
(NHB) Directions, 2010 dated 2 July 2018 ("the NHB Directions”) issued by National Housing Bank (NHB)
and other applicable regulations.

The Management of the Company is also responsible for maintenance of proper books of account and
such other records. This responsibility includes the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents and the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to ensure compliance with the NHB Directions and other applicable regulations:
applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to report on matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-
05/2018 Master Circular- Housing Finance Companies - Auditor's Report (NHB) Directions, 2016 dated 2
July 2018 ("the Directions”) issued by NHB. We conducted our work in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Standards on Auditing issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), in so far as applicable for the purpose of this report
which includes the concepts of test check and materiality. This Guidance Note requires that we comply
with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control {(SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform audits and Reviews of Historical Financial formation, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

v

tegd. Offics: indiabulls Finrance Centre, Tower 3, 277 - 32 Foor, Senapati Bagat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West)l, Mumbal - 400 013, Manharashtra, India,
[LLP kemtification No. AAR-8737)
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We have examined the audited books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained
by the Company produced before us as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of
providing reasonable assurance on the matters specified in the Directions.

. The audited financial statements referred to in paragraph 6 above, have been audited by us, on which
we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our report dated 7 May 2019. Our audit of these financial
statements was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

Opinion

On the basis of our examination on a test check basis of such books of account and other relevant records
and documents and to the best of our information and explanations and representations given to us by
the Management of the Company, we report that

* The Company has obtained a certificate of registration (COR) from the NHB as required under section
29A of the NHB Act, 1987 with registration No. 08.0158.17 dated August 22, 2017.

+ The Company has met the required Net owned fund (NOF) requirement as prescribed under section
29A of the NHB Act, 1987,

* The Company has complied with provisions of section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987, relating to transfer
of amounts to the Statutory Reserve,

+ The Company is not accepting / holding public deposit and the board of directors has passed the
resolution for non- acceptance of any public deposits in its meeting held on May 12, 2012,

+ The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2018-19.

* The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under the limits prescribed under
paragraph 3(2) of the NHB Directions.

=« The Company has generally complied with the prudential norms on income recognition, accounting
standards, assets classification, loan to value ratio, provisioning requirements, disclosure in balance
sheet, investment in real estate, exposure to capital market and engagement of brokers and
concentration of credit / investment in specified in the NHB Directions;

+ Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the Schedule-II return submitted to the National Housing Bank
in terms of the NHB Directions has been correctly determined and is in compliance with the minimum
capital to risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) prescribed therein;

= The Company has generally furnished to the NHB within the stipulated period the schedule II return
as specified in the NHB Directions;

* The Company has generally furnished to NHB within the stipulated period the schedule 111 return on
Statutory Liquid Assets as specified in the NHB directions;

* The Company has complied with the provisions of the NHB Directions with regard to opening of new
branches / offices or in the case of closure of existing branches / offices;

= The Company has complied with the provisions contained in paragraph 38 and 38A of the NHBE
Directions.
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Restrictions on Use

9, This report has been issued at the request of the Company for submission to NHB. This report is intended
solely for the information and use of the NHB and is not intended to be and should not be distributed to
or used for any one other purpose Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty ol
care for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come
without our prior consent in writing.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

-

Anjum A. Qaz
Partner
(Membership No. 104968)

Mumbai, 28 June 2019
UDIN: 19104968AAAABL5270
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Manappuram Home Finance Umited

[Formsrly Manappuram Bome Finance Private Limited)
CIN : UE5S923KLI010PLO0Z917S

Ealance Sheet a5 at 31 March, 2019

[l amaunts are in indinn Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Az at A5 At As at
Paotes 31 March 2013 31 March 2018 1 Apeil 2017
I ASSETS
1 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 19,24,85,797 3,70,22,880 9,69,11,357
Leans 5 5.13.58,62.402 3,68,34,83,572 3,07.50,44,053
Other Financial aspets [ 4,16,50,937 L1k29 a4 1,14,61,528
2 Non-finandal fssets
Current tax assets (net) T 85913 12,73,100
Delerred tax assets {net) . . .
Propty, plant and eguipreent -3 85,1679 137,711,100 1,42 56,956
Capital work-in-prograss E] . - 49,73, 540
Other intangible assets m 4,038,234 74,098,165 416,953
Cther nan financial assets 1 85,877 79,50,257 £4,25,348 |
Total assats 5,40,02.99.033 37 ) 3,20,74,45,713
0 LIABILITIES AND EQIUITY
1 Fnancial Liabilities
Payables
(NTrade Pavables
(i) votal eutstanding dues of micra enterprives and
small grterpriies - - -
(i) total cutstamding duses of crediters other than micra
enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(WjOtheer Payables
1) total cutstanding des of micra enterprives and
small enterpries
[ii) tetal utstanding dues of credior: other than micra
enlerprises and smal entarprises. 92,95,508 B0,52,831 23,24 876
Borrowings (other than debt security) 12 3,46, 30.50.922 LBEROI0E2E 220,583,591, 201
Cbver Firnicial Rakiities 13 1,57,64,310 1,84,13,168 19,76,662
Man-financlal Lisbilitles
Currant tia ligbilties [net] 14 = 5,289 4,711,670
Presiiians 15 54,96 316 FLER25Y 44,555,364
Grther non-financhl liabilties 16 79,03,187 61.00,120 43,596,844
3,50,05,15,243 2,89,59,54,291 231,356,617
Equiny
Egquity share capital 17 2,00,00,00,000 1,00,03,00,000: 1,00,00,00,000
Other equity 18 (10,02,20,204) [12,57.44,393) (10,52, 26,504]
Total Usbiites sod Euly SRMBEY | 36| 33074575 |
See accompanying rates forming part of the financial statements [Rotes | 1-41)
As per cur repoat of even date
For Deloine Hasking & For and on behalf of of Directars
Chartered
« * =
A
Partner
Place.

Diate 7 May 2019



Manappurnm Hose Finance Limited

[Formerly Manappuram Homae Finance Private Limited)

CIN ; UBSSZIKLINTOPLODITLTS

Statement of Pradit and Lass fer the year ssded 31 March, 2019
A8l mmouncs are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise sabed)

Yebr ended ear endhed
Partigalis ] 1 March 2009 31 March 2018
Revinug from eperations.
il Ineredl inoame b1 1] 3,483,962 49,5317, 797
(] het gadn oo fair vadue changes 19(# 22,0801 ITILET
i) Other oparating income 194@) 12359073 1.80.28.00%
[} Total Revedui from oparationd Total income 56,28, 11,046 51,51,18,3%%
Expenses
li} Fisarce cast 0 30,97.51,829 12.87.20,282
[} Imgal of fi ER A153,365 4,618,487
(i} Employee benefit expenses 2 21,37.27.291 15,32,01,320
[} Depreciation, amartication and impairmant BEID 702,451 B4,31,345
[} Dnkar sxpanses 3 9,54,04 550 £57.91,738
[ Total Expesses (Il B,98,T9,506 56,239,173
[} Profit/[loss) before expcepsional Rems and tax {1+ 1] 3,29,31,450 {4,72.80,774)
(L] Excaptional nesn .
™ Prafitf{lass) Eefore tax (11 - V) 3,29,31,450 19,72,80.774)
(11} Tax Experae:
L} Current tax b 12,0000 309,189
12} MAT Creiit Eraithmant 610802 (200380
13} Daferned tax Azeet - -
14} Earfier years adjuasments (20,59,802) (27,848,770}
v Prafitf{loss) for the year 3,02,11.450 [4,45, 55.004)
v Other Campreheniin Intarme
A (i} e thart willl not be clesified to profit or loas
Acturlal Galn / [Loss) 308,000 -
Subtotal (&) 308,000 "
B [} Itesms that will be classifled to profitor loss -
[if} Ingene pax relating w0 itema thar will be reclamifed o profic
o ke =
Subtotal () -
Ot Comprahpnsve Incama (A + B) 3.08,000
1} Earnings per equity share
Basic (R} F-] = ] [2.85)
Diluted (8] F=1 oas [2ua5)
Sew Bieompanying notes forming part of the financial fatements,
A3 per our report of even date
For Deloithe Hasking & Sails LLP For and on behall of the of Directors
mw7
.
L
Parnar

Dt 7 Moy 2009
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Manappuram Heme Finance Limited

[Formerty Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : 65923 KL2010PLC03S179

Cash Flow statemant for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(4l arnounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Dperating sctivities

Profit befare tax 3.32,39,450 (4,72,80,774)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tox to net cash flows:

Depreciation & amortisation 7702451 84,31,345
Impairment on financial instruments 32,53 365 4,51,54,487
Bad Debts Written off 21,2B434 24,73,320
Dividend income (2,08,012) [37.71,673)
Share based payments 1o emplopees 50,04,7339 1,309,18,515
Impact of Fair value on Security Deposits 2,99,080 (2,52,314)
Working capital changes

Loans {1,45,77,50,709) (B5,71,17,348))
Trade paysbles and contract Babisity 12,020,677 32,07,955
Other Financial Liability 13,51,142 1,14,36,506
(Other Non Financial Liability 15,41,639 5B,93,558
Ortheer Finandal Assets [3,06,20,233) 3,84.056
Other Man Financial Assets [88,76,295)| (57,98,045)
Inpome Tan paid 45,00,000 {20,20,000}
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities (1,43,562,32,282)| (62,52,95,413}
Irvesting activities

Purchase of fixed and intangible assets [25,38,108) (1,00,04,162)
Dividend Income 2,08,012 3771673
| Met cash flows fromy{used in) investing activities (23,30,097) (E2,32,489)
Fimancing activities

Barrgwings cther than debt securities issued 59,40.29,296 57,16,39,425
Is2ue of Share Capital 1,00,00,00,000 -
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,59,40,29,296 57.16,39,425
et increase in cash and cash equivalents 15,54,65,917 5.58,88,477)
Cash and cash equivalents a3 at the beginning of the year 3,70,22,580 9,69,11,357
Cash and cash equivalents at st the end of the year 19,24,89,797 3,70,22,B80 |

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (Notes : 1-41)

A per our report of even date

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accosntants

Anjum A, Qazi
Partner

Date: 7 May 2019

V.P. Mandakumar
Chairman
CdN : DD044512

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors




Manappuram Heme Finance Limited

[Formerhy Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)

CIN ; UGS923KL2010PLE035179

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2019
[All ameunts are in indkan Aupees, unless otherwize stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of As, 10 each issued, subscoribed and fully paid

# MANAPPURAM

No. of shares A

As at 31 March 2018 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00, 000
Issued during the year 10,00.00.000 1,00,00,00,000
As 8t 31 March 2019 200000000 2,00,00,00,000
A5 a1 Apdl 2017 10,00,00.000 1,00,00,00,000
lssued during the pear M .
As at 31 March 2018 10,00,00,000 1, 00,00, 00, D00
b. Dther Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Employee Shang
Optien Outstanding of Orther Comprebeniive
Statutory Resenve Parent Compary Retained Earnings Income Total

Balance a3 at April 1, 2008 5,10,640 2,28,91,530 (16,05,26,563) [13.67.42,393) |
Share based payments 10 employees - 60,04,738 - B0,04,739
Amit transferred to Statutony Reserve 61,03,890 - [51,03,890) -
Teital Comprehensive Income for the year = - 3,008,000 3,08,000
Prafit f {loss) after tax - - 3,02,11,450 3,02,11,450
Balance as at March 31, 2019 70,184,530 2,88,96,269 133,61,31,003] * [10,02,20,204)
Balance as at April 1, 2017 9,10,640 88,73,015 (11,60,10,558) = [10,61,25,904)
Share based paymenis to employees - 1,39,18 515 . 1,39,18,515
Total Comprehensive Incame far the year - " - .
Prafit / {logs) after tax - - (4,45,36,004) [4,45,35,008)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 9,10,640 2,28,91,530 {186,05,26,563) - [13,67.44,333)

A5 per our report of even date

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Ac nts

Anjem A Qazl

eace: VALAPAD

Date: T May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W.P. Nandakumar
Chairman
DiN : 00044512
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Manappuram Home Finance Limited
(Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : U55923KL2010PLCO39179

Accounting Policies

MNote 1: Carporate Information

Manappuram Home Finance Limited 'MHFL' or 'the Company') is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated on October 7, 2010 in Thrissur, Kerala. The Company is @ Non-Deposit accepting Housing Finance
Company registered with National Housing Bank (NHB) under the provisions of Mational Housing Bank Act 1387
{"NHB Act').The Company is engaged in providing housing loans.

The company's registered office is at Third Floor, A Wing, Unit Ne 301-315, Kanakia Wall Street, Andheri Kurla
Road, Andher East, Mumbai-400093.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 were authorised for issuance in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 7th May 2019.

MNote 2: N nting Standards but not effective

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on 30 March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto.
Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 30 March, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers)
and short-term leases {i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

ifi ntin ic
a. Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 with effect from April 1, 2018, Previous period figures have been restated to Ind AS, In accordance with Ind
AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company has presented a reconciliation from the
presentation of financial statements under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 ("Previous GAAP") ta Ind AS of Shareholders’ equity as at March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2017
and of the Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018. These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”).

b. Basis of preparation _
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting peried, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,

¢. Functional and n

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional currency of the Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
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d. Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policy and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the end of the reporting period and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the year presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

. R i f
i} Int nd similar |

Under Ind AS 10% interest income and expenses is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
interest bearing financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage
3, the company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the company reverts to calculating
interast income on a gross basis,

ii.) All other charges such as chegue return charges, overdue charges etc are recognised on realization basis. These
charges are treated to accrue on realization, due to the uncertainty of their realization.

f.P Plant and equipment (PP

An item is recognised as an asset, If and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial
cost of PPE comprises its purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade
discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular
intervals, the Company recognises such parts as separate component of assets. When an item of PPE is replaced,
then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and cost of the new itern of PPE is recognised.
The expenditures that are incurred after the itemn of PPE has been put to use, such as repairs and maintenance, are
normally charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in
situations where the said expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic benefits

associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as
appropriate,

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based
on useful lives estimated by the management,
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The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulars Useful Life of Assets
Computers 3 years
Furniture & Fittings 5-10 years
Office Equipment 3-5 years
Motor Car Byears

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other operating income in the Statement of profit
and loss in the year in which the asset is derecognised.

The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains contral of that
item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amaortisation and accumulated impairment loss. Intangible
assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The company considers that
the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed 5 years from the date when the asset Is available for use.

h. Assets Held for Sale

The company classifies certain assets held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale rather than through continuing use. In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company
may take possession of properties. The company may not physically repossess properties but engage external
agents to recover the funds generally at auctions to settle the outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to
the customers or obligors. As a result of this practice, the properties under legal repossessions process are not
recorded on the balance sheet as loans and are treated as non-current assets held for sale. The company currently
records them in the financial statement at lower of loan amount outstanding or recoverable value as per the
valuation report. Any deficit is transferred to profit or loss account.
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i. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Recoverable ameount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset [or cashgenerating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

As at March 31, 2019, none of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets were
considered impaired.

. Leases

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease based
an the substance of the lease arrangement.

Company as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general
inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is
recognised as an expense in the peried in which they it is incurred.

k. Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plans)

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to such benefits.

Gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan)

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method with
acturial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Acturial gains and losses are recognised in full in
other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur. Past service cost both vested and unvested is
recognised as an expense at the earlier of (a.) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; (b) when the
entity recognises related restructuring costs or related termination benefits .

The retirement benefits / obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit / obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any assets resulting from this calculation is
limited to present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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Short-term employee benefits

&ll employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave,
The undiscounted amount of short-term employes benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

Compensated absence

Compensated absence which are expected to occur within 12 months after end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are recognised as an acturially determined liabilities at the present value of the
obligation at the balance sheet date.

|. Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Current / Deferred tax is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

il Current Taxes

Current income tax expense includes income tax payable by the company on its taxable profits for the period.
Advance tax and provision for income tax are provided after off setting advance tax paid and provision for tax arising
in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liabilities on net
basis.

1] r Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss
and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at gach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

m. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus dilutive potential shares except where results

are anti dilutive,
.
Vi,
. _‘f_.'-_‘.‘l ¢ h\
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n. sions and other Contin li

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value
of maney is material, the Company determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a
pre-tax rate reflecting the current market assessment of time value of money and risk is specific to liabilities. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement in other
operating expenses.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

©. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and balances with banks in current accounts,

p. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extracrdinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past / future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

g. Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liakility, in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are measured

and disclosed in the said financial statements.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments ~Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices
from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date, The
Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on
the balance sheet date.
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Level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life,
Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical
instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield
curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.
However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement,
the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3,

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that includes one or more uncbservable input where there is little market
activity for the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole.

r. Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition - All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset,
Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

At amortised cost

At fair value through other comprehensive income (FYVTOCI).

Al fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A 'financial asset’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement at fair value plus directly attributable costs, these financial assets are subseguently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Business model: The business model reflects how the company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, whether the company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g.
financizl assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business
model and measured at FVPL.

T




PN
£ MANAPPURAM [I7el?]3

Manappuram Home Finance Limited

(Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : U65923KL2010PLCO39179

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash
flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time
value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic
lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
amertised cost, as menticned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities

Initial Measurement : Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement : Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

The company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss in accordance with IND
AS 109.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
ariginal effective interest rate.

The company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as
lgans and advances held at amortised cost for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

The company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for financial assets at
amortised cost and loan commitments,

Stage 1 : 12-months ECL All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recagnition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company has assessed that all leans with no default or upto 30 days default would
fall under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL are recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the
gross carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Significant increase in eredit risk

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial asset. Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are
classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase in credit risk and classified under
this category. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized, but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL = credit impaired

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or mare events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have
become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

£V
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Credit-impalired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost. A financial asset
is ‘credit-impaired” when a breach of contract such as a default or past due event that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECL reflects:

a) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes
b) The time value of money

c) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are measured as
follows:

- Fimancial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls over
the expected life of the financial asset discounted by the effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows due to the company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company
expects to receive.

- Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the effective interest rate.

- Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the company expects to receive,

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off, However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the company's
procedures for recovery of amounts due,

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as  follows:
a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;
b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers
its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by
the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de recognition

of the original liability and the recegnition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the
ariginal financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting
The company has not offset financial assetyand financial labilities.
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FINANCE LTD.

Manappuram Home Finance Limited

{Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : UB5923KL2010PLC039179

Notes to Financial Statements

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Other financlal assets

Asat Asat Azat

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Sepurity depesits B3,09,633 77.81,513 70,51,383
Aspets held for Sale (Refer Note 3 (h)] 3,15,45,542 - .
Deferred lease rental 17,91,682 35 48 271 44,10,143
Total %ﬂ_l 1&25;“ 1,146,525
Naote 7: Current Tax

Bsat Asat Az at

Particilars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Advance Tax Net off Provision 65,91.013 22,73,100 -
Toul 908 3275100
Note B: Property, plant and equipment

Computer Furniture &

Particulars Office Equipments | Equipments Flxtures Vehicles Tatal
Cost:
At April 1, 2018 37.66,476 1,21,54,114 58,18,421 746,117 2,84,95,128
Additians 2,068,546 3,865,515 75,400 - 568,461
Less : On Dispesals/Transfers 25,850 - 3,28,035 . 3,53,B86
At March 31, 2019 39,47,172 1,2550,629 95,65,785 7,406,117 1,58,09,703
At April 1, 2007 31,44,581 97,15279 91,12,084 * L,19,81,534
Additions 669,174 24,87,836 6,57,337 1748117 65,60,524
On Dispoasls/Tranafers 47,219 49,061 (45,000} . 47,340
At March 31, 2018 3766476 12164104 | 5818421 2746117 2,84,55,128
Accumulated Depreciation @
At April 1, 2018 21,594,277 78,565,472 43,31, 202 343,007 1,47,24,028
Less : On Disposals/Transfers 20,798 - 118,736 - 1,339,534
Charge for the year 11,658,111 24,69,590 16,87,744 286,085 56,12.530
At March 31, 2019 33,42,590 1,03,25,062 59,00,210 6,219,162 2.01,97,024
AL April 1, 2017 10.22,567 43,73,315 23,219,108 - 7724988
Less : Dn Dispasals/Transfers 4,500 47,345 14,900 = 47,345
Charge for the year 11,756,610 35,29,503 15.97,196 343077 70,456,385
At March 31, 2018 21,94.277 78,55472 43,3202 343,017 1,47,24,028
Net book value:
At March 31, 2019 6,04,582 21.25,567 36,65,575 2116955 B6,12,679
At March 31, 2018 15,72,199 43,08,642 54,87,219 24,03,040 1,37,71,100
At April 1, 2007 11,212,014 53,51,964 67,82,978 - 1,42,56,955
Nate 9: Capital work-in-progress
Cost or deerned cost [gross carrying amount) AUt
AtMarch 31, 2018
Additigns
Dispasals
At March 31, 2019
At April 1, 2007
Additions
Capitalised During the year
At March 31, 2018
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Manappuram Home Finance Limited

(Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)

CIM : U65923KL2010PLCO39173
Motes to Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 10: Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software
Cost:
At April 1, 2018 84,50,822
Additions 20,284,000
Less : On Disposals -
At March 31, 2019 1,05,34,822
At April 1, 2017 22,854,150
Additions 23,67,172
Less : On Disposals 22,00,500
At March 31, 2018 24,50,822
Accumulated Amortisation :
At April 1, 2018 10,41,657
Less ; On Disposals -
Charge for the year 20,389,321
At March 31, 2019 31,321,578
At April 1, 2017 18,57,197
On Disposals 22,000,500
Charge for the year 13,284,960
At March 31, 2018 10,41,657
Met book value:
At March 31, 2019 74,03,244
At March 31, 2018 74,098,165
At April 1, 2017 4,26,953
Mote 11: Other Non-financial assets

As at As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
GST/Service tax Input Credit 33,664 1,46,533 4,20,139
Frepaid expenses 65,88,705 42,584,721 25,82,372
MAT Credit Entitlement 4,89,487 31,009,239 -
Others 5,77,021 4,09,754 14,22,837

76,88,877 79,50,297 44,25,348




Manappuram Home Financoe Limited

(Farmerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)

CIN : UG5923IKL2010PLCO3S1TS
Notes to Financal Statements

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Nate 12: Borrowings [other than debt security]

As at 31 March 2018

Particudars As at 31 March 20019 A% an 1 Apeil 2017
At Amortised cost At Amortised cost At Amortised cost
Term Loans - Indian rupes lcan from banks (Secured) 252,498,498 711 1,71,B4,63,397 2,29.63,91, 301
‘Working Capital Demand Loan - Indian rupes loan
froam thind parties (Secured] 30,00,00,000
Commercial Paper [Unsecured] 24.50,15.367 -
Cash credit facilities from banks [secured) 39,20,94, 844 14,95,52,229
Total 36,209,522 2858030526 | 2,29,63,91,201
All Borrowings made in lelio,
Indian Rupee loan from banks (secured)
A5 at 31st March, 2019
Terms of repaymaent
Tenure (fram the dave of Balance Sheet) Rate of Irterest Amount
Term Loans :*
More than 5 years 9.35% - 10.50% 785921538
Due within 2-5 years 9.35% - 10.50% 131,65, 30,460
Due within 1-2 years 9.35% - 10.50% 56,95,19,436
Due within 1 year 9.35% - 10.50% 55.95,68,287
Total 2,52,45,49,711
Werking Capital Demand Loan :*
Due within 1 year 5.35% - 10.50% 30,00, 00, D00
Tatal 30,00,00,000
Commancial Pagers :
Due within 1 year 9.35% - 10.50% 24,50,15,367
Total 24,50,15,367
Cash Credit Facilities from Banks :*
Due within 1 year 9,355 - 10.50% 35,20,94 842
Total 39,20,94,844

* These are secured by an exclusive charge by way of pari pagsu first charge on housing laans receivables of the Company.

As at 315t March, 2018

Terms of repayment

Tenura [from the date of Balance Shaet]
Term Loans

Mare than 5 years

Due within 2-5 years

Due within 1-1 years

Due within 1 year

Total

Cash Credit Facllivies from Banks =
Due within 1 year

Total

Rate of Interest

B.ED - 5.65%
B.E0% - 5.E5%
8.80% - 5.65%
B.80% - 9.65%

B.B0% - 9.65%

Amgunt

13,73,60.410
1,31,07,57,330
53,66,76,477
£1,35,34,180
2,71,84,68 357

14,956,219
14,95,62.219

* These are secured by an exclusive charge by way of pari passu first charge on standard loans receivables of the Company.

A5t 1st April, 2007

Tarms of repayment

Tenure [from the date of Balanoe Sheet]
Tarm Loansg :*

Mare than 5 years

Due within 2-5 years

Due within 1-1 years

Due within 1 year

Tatal

Rate of Interest

G305 - 11.00%
5.30% - 11.00%
5.30% - 11.00%
2.30% - 11.00%

Amount

46,45, 38 S8
1,19,20,40,975
39,73 46,008
24,24,65,144
1,29,63,91,203

* These are secured by an exclusive charge by way of pari passu first charge on standard loars receivables of the Company.
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FINANCE LTD.

Manappura Home Fnsne Limited

[Fesmnirly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)

CIN 1 IS5 I010FLCO3S1 TS
Mobes 1o Financial Statements

Al amrcunts ane in Indien Bupses, urkeis cthanwise 12ated]

Hote 13: Other Financial Gabilities

Ayt s ot s at
Particulan 38 March 3019 Bl March 2008 1 Apail 2017
Bvtarast sccrued and dus on borrowings 15 50,508 15,34, 406 .
Ot lakilities 14703803 1,2B,78,762 I3 76.663
157,564,310 144,143,168 249, 76,663
MNote 14: Curnest Tax Liakahties
A wt g ot g at
Paniculsn 31 March J0bd 31 March }018 1 April 2017
Proviskon for Tax Met off Advanes Tax - B3 285 4,71 60
- 55383 371690,
Mote 15 Provisions
Ay ak A at Az ak
Farticulars 31 March 2015 31 March 2018 1 &pril 2007
ECL Frowishon om Laas Commitmants 14,80,754 15,70,734 5.R3LEIE
Employee Benedits [Reder Mote 15)
= Graaity 1525000 204,000 1569013
=P far gamp d b 11,08.000 £54.000 981,000
Otheri 342552 321,523 3.21.513
Bishile  aeazst  aassie
Loar Comnmitrmasty fGnoks) =
Yiar enched 31 Masch 3019 Waar ended 31 March 2018
Stage 1 Stage ¥ Stage 3 Tatal Stage 1 Stage 2  |[Stage 3 Tetal
44,2950, 148 150600 - AB,3L0L,7a8 | 21.08,719%0 10.58.150 = 2L.15.40,119
wms0us| 151600 - | emdigaies| sioniees | weeise| . | 31501
#in analysis of changes in the gross cammying amount and the corresponding ECL allowanoes in relation to Home boans s, as follows
Year ended 11 March 1% Year gnded 31 March 3018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 | Tetal
G garrying amesnt cpening balance 1,08,71,5%5 10,58, 150 = 21,19,40,119 | 16,1%77,199 14,74,355 . 16,33,52,054
Kew erpaiuret 48,29.50,148 153,600 . £B35,02,748 | 210871969 A0,68,150 . 11,1940,119
Expiured Serecagrised o matured
{enchuding write-affi] (21,08,71,965) 110,68,150] . 121.19,40,1150) (161877199} [14,74.855) . (15.23,52.054))
Graws arrying amount closing balance 48,25.50,1+8 152,500 = 433102748 | 21,08.7L968 10,568,150 = 21,19.40,119
Recancliation of [CL belarae iy pheen balow:
Yiar ended 31 March 2010 ear ended 11 March 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Smge? | Saged Teaal
ECL allowanoe - opening balance 1133334 55,199 . 11,78,733 531514 51,305 . 5,831,819
Maw Fxpoaes 14,358,579 1184 . 14,60, TE3 11,23,3%4 55,599 . 11,78,733
Expsdunet derecogniced or mabured
(exthling write-affy) [11,25.334) [55.!'!111 - [11,78,733) [5.32,514) (52,305] . (523,814
ECL allywance - chosing balance 14,1057 1184 . 14,40, 763 11,23,334 55,399 . 11,78,733
Hote 16 Other Noa-finamcial lisbilites.
Al it &t As ot
Paftigulsn 31 Miprch 2018 51 March 2018 1 Apnl 2017
Seatutory Remittances 50,559,245 46,18.540 L
Employee relates payables 543,541 14,71.580 100746
74,03, 187 €1.00,120 43,56, Bas
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FINANCE LTD.

Manappuram Home Finance Limited

[Fermerly Managpuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : USS923KL2010PLO03S1 TS

Notes to Financial Statements

[All amounts are in Indian Rupees, unbess atherwise stated)

Hote 17: Equity share capital

The reconcillation of equity shares cutstanding st the beginning and at the end of the period

A3 at s st s at

Autharised 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Aperil 2017
200,000,000 {March 31, 2018: 100,000,000, April 1, 2017:
100,000,000 equity shares of Bs. 10/~ each ,00,00,00.000 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000

2,00,00,00,000 L.04,00.00,000 1,00,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
200,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 100,000,000, April 1, 2017
100,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 2,00,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 1.00,00,00,000
Total lssued, subseribed and fully paid up 2.00,00.00.000 1,00.00.00.000 1,00,00,00,000

Reconcllintion of the number of shares and amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

No. of shares Amount
As ot March 31, 2018 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
Issued during the year 10,00,00.000 1,00,00,00,000
As ot March 31, 2018 2] 00
As b April 1, 2017 10.00,00,000 1,060, 040,00, 000
Issued during the year - -
A3 an harch 31, 2018 10,00,00,000 1,060, 00, 00,000

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Thie Company has only cne class of equity shares having a par value of B, 10/ per share, Each holder of equity shares i entitled to one vole per share.

Im the event of Bguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distibution of all preferential
amaunts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Detalls of sharehalders holding mere than 5% shares in the Company

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Particulars Ko of equity HNa. of equity shares Mo. of equity
shares hald % of holding hizld % of holding shares held % of holding

Equity shares ef Rs, 10 ench fully paid
Manappuram Finance Limited (Holding
compary) and Its nominees 20,00,00,000 100% 10,00.00,000 100% 10,00,00,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shanehalders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
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Manappuram Home Finance Limited

(Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limived)
CIN : UBS923KL2010PLC039172

Notes to Financial Statements

[&ll ameunts are in Indian Augees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18: Other equity

Employee Shares Option Qutstanding of Parent Company
AL March 31, 2018

Add: Other Additions/ Deductions during the year

At March 31, 20019

At April 1, 2017

Add: Other Additions during the year

At March 31, 2018

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29-C of the Matlonal Housing Act, 1987
At March 31, 2018

Add: Trangfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Ar March 31, 2019

ArApril 1, 2007

Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statemant of Profit and Loss

At March 31, 2018

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
At March 31, 2018

Add: Prafit for the year

Less: Appropriations

Transfer to Statutory Resenve

At March 31, 2019

At April 1, 2017

Add: Profit for the year

Add/Less: Appropriations

At March 31, 2018

Total other equity

At March 31, 2019

ar March 31, 2018

At April 1, 2017

Total Reserves and Surplus

Nature and purpose of Reserves

2,28,31,530
0,04,739
2,88,96,269
£9,73,005

1.35,18515
2,18,91,530

9,10,620
51,03,850
¥0,14,530

9,10,620

9,10,640

{16,05,46,563)
3,05,15,450

(61,03,890)
113,61,31,003]
{11,69,10,559)

(4,45,36,004]

|16,05,46,563)
(10,02, 20,204}

(13,67,44,303)
(10,61,26,504)

Employee Share Option Outstanding : Shares of parent campany has been issued 1o the emplayees of the company for rendering services, Expense of such
shares has baen booked by the company and correspanding increase to the equity has been shown in the reserves as other equiny.

Statutory Reserve : Statutory resenne [Pursuant to section X9C of the NHB Act, 1987 & Section 36(1)(wviii] of Income Tax A, 1961): Section 28C [i) of The
Natignal Housing Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a Comparry shall ereate a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not
less than twenty percent of its net prafit every year a5 disclosed in the statement of profit and boss before any dividend is declared. For this purposa any
special reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1) (viil) of Income w@x Act 1961, b considered to be an eligible transfer. The Comparny has transherned

an amaunt of Rs. 61,03,891 (P.Y. Nil) to special reserve in terms of Section 36[1) {viii] of the Income Tax Act 1961 considered eligible for special reserve u/s 250
of NHE A 1987,
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Manappuram Home Finanoe Liritod

(Fermerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : BE5S2IKL2010PLO03S17S

Nertes to Financial Statements

{All ameunts arein indien Rupees, unless otherwize stated)

Nate 19 : Revenue from operstions

Note 19 (i) Interest Income

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Particulars Masch 2019 March 2018
Interest on Financial Axsets

Meagyred gt Amortised Cost

= Heme loans 45,01.86,130 52,66,44.975
- Others 19,40,65,029 16,75,52.923
Othar interest income 92,203 11,19,853
Tatal 4,43,43,952 49,53,17.797

Hote 19 {ii): Met pain on fair valwe l;"l.‘ll'u:i.
Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Particulars March 2009 March 2018
Net gain/ (logs) On trading
partfolic
= Inestments 08012 377673
Teaad Met gain(loss) on fair value
changes 2,08,002 37.70.673
Naote 19 (i Other operating income:
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
Particulars Masch 2019 March 2018
Foreclosure Charges 93,17.572 1,019,30, 608
Cithers B9.41,100 50,598,321
Total LB25B072 | 16028523

Note 20: Finance Cost

Year ended 31

Particulars March 2019
Interest expense on Financial
Liabilites measured at
Amartised Cost:-
- on Bank and pther barrowings 39,64,43.855 22.71,13,127
= on Commeercial papers 1,01,27.117 -
Other barrowing cos 3180913 16,67,155
Total 30,3751,89 | 33.7,80,282 |
Mate Z1: impairment of financial instr =

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Particulars March 2019 March 2018
Loans [25,47,048) 4,61,94 487
|Prosiskon on assets held for sale !;I:.;l_l;-l-_ﬂ! -
Tatal 3295 365 461,94 457
The table below shows the ECL charges on fi fal b for the year recorded in the profit and loss based on evalsation stage

Particulsrs Year ended 31 Manch 2009 \‘t_lrlﬂdllﬂilldil'ﬂ‘l?ﬂﬂ-

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Lewns and advances 1o
Customens [1.12.515] 139.63,303) 11,66,745 | (28,09,073)| 57,76,128 | L1207.3T8 | 2,BE16,087 455,939,573
Laan Commitmants 3,186,245 {52,218) . 2,62 030 5,50 B30 4,094 . 594,924
Total impairment ks 2,03,730 [40,17,518) 1266745 | (25.47,043)|  63,66.948 | 1.12.11.472 | 2.86,16.057 4,51,94,487

4
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FINANCE LTD.

Manappuram Home Finance Limited

{Farmerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : UB5923KL2010PLCO39179

Notes to Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

Note 22; Employee Benefit Expenses

Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
Particulars 2019 2018
Salaries and wages 19,08,87.651 16.57,11,804
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,21,35,367 1,12,36,498
Share based payments to employees 60,04,739 1,35,18,515
Staff welfare expenses 18,40,534 15,47,503
Gratuity and Leave Encashment 28,59,000 T.87,000
Total 21,37,27,291 19,32,01,320
Note 23: Other Expenses
Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
Particulars 2019 2018
Rent expense 2,37,52,572 2,16,68,781
Electricity expense 20,16,773 1797584
Travelling and conveyance 1,01,91.071 71,23.240
Insurance 4,83,865 305,748
Printing and stationary 35,17,954 5342419
Communication 28,54,344 24,40,393
Rates and taxes 4,289,771 61,85.463
Legal and Professional fees 1,24,65,289 85,74,063
Advertisement Expense 20,056,884 10,000
Directors sitting fees 17,73,200 18,00,000
IT Cost 2,84,95,858 2,22,80,201
Bad Debts 21,28.424 24,73,320
Repairs and maintenance 2,84,002 4,553,248
Miscellaneous expenses 15,45,740 15,50,237
Bank and other Charges 13,45,524 23,62,041
Auditor's remuneration 18,13,313 14,25,000
Total 9,54,04,590 8,57,91,738
Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
Particulars 2019 2018
As auditor:
Audit fee 11,484,500 9,00,000
Limited reviews 4,42,813 2,25,000
Certification fees 2,138,000 2,00,000
fieimbursement of expenses 8,000 1,00.000
18,13,313 14,25,000
Note 24: Income Tax
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Current tax 22,00,000 31,090,289
MAT Credit Entitlement 26,159,802 (31,09,289)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years {20,99,802) (27,44,770)
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of tempaorary
differences . -
Total tax charge 27,20,000 (27,44,770)
Current tax 27,20,000 [27,44,770)
Deferred tax -

e
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Maotes to Financlad Statemonts

(Al amounts are e incian Aupees, untess otherwie stived]

Reconciliation of tax expente and the acoounting peofit multiplied by India’s domenie tax me!

Yoear ered Voar pnced
Farticulars 31 March 2013 31 Mzach 2018
Prafin Before Tax 3. rh30.450 18.72,80,774)
Irecorme AN Epense cubzuinted o7 27BN (MY 203N B1060,000 {96,40,008)
Effwerof expenaas that are not deductible in decermining
tamabie profit T, 10,000 LERTAL
Utilisatien of previcushy unrecogrited tix lodtes [52,10.000} -
Effect of incomes whith 3re sxEmpE Fram ax [25,60,000} {523308)
uilleation of MAT Credit T.95.600 131,08, 285]
Effiet of cupenaes for which walghted deduction under tan
Raws s allowed [ B 0000 =
T prervisicn foreaciier vears (20,99,802) {27447
Cthery B TE5 8
Incomeg G sxpasin edognised in statement of profit and
i 27,20,000 [7.44,770)

Tax of effecthvr bacome Tar rate of 27,825 (P 20, 395

Kete 25: Enrnings par thars

Year ended Year ended

_machios  mimachio
Net profit for calculation of Earnings Per Share 3,05,15.450 !mm:l
\Wisighted sverage numbef of egully shires bn caloulating Exmi 108767228 10,00.00.000
Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) [k} ] 0,45}
Ciluted arnings Per Share (Rs) C2E (Oa5E
Mabe I8; Retiremant Benefit Plan
Difined Cantribution Man
The Comparry makes Provident Fund snd Employee State ir Hheme - 3 which sre defined conlributson plird, Sar cualifing emplovess. Under the

Sehemes, the Compary is required 1o contribute a specified peroentage of the payrall conts 1o fund the benefi. The Company recognized s 1,00,22, 104 as-om March 31,
2018 and Au. FEOT.OHD v on Mot 52, 2008 for Privident and ther Fund contributions and Rs. 20,880,008 a5 on March 31, 2019 s Re, 19,00, 568 as on March X1, 2016
Tor Emplovee Smate Ingumance Scheme contrisanions in the Stmement of Profit and Lags. The contrizutions pryble 1o these pluns by the Comnpary ane at rates specified in
1t Fulag of tha Schames.

Defised Banelic Flas

Tre Cornpany hay ¢ defined bara®t gratuity glan, Dvery emploves whe has completed 5 vears or mors of sanvice Jet & gratulty on degartone ot 15 daye salary (last driven
salary) for each comoleted year of sérdice. The scheme b fumded with Fs.25,05 000 a3 o= March 31, 2018,

Fiisks Axpociated with Defined Benafis Plan -
Gratudy i @ defines benells plan and 15e Company is exposed o the following riska:

Imterest mbe risk: A& {ull i the discount rabe which i fivied ta the 8562 Rale will increase B presend valoe of the liability requleing Magher provision. A Tall i (he diggaunt
Fote fanarally incraaces the mark b0 market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Sulpry Bk The present vale of the defired banefit plan labiity s cafvuliced by refereace 1o the future sstaries of mernbers. A3 Such, B ingreass in the salery of the
AT Mone ShiEn d leml adll Tha plan’y Iy,

Imvastment Risk: The present value of the defined bane!it plan Latility is caleciated uaing 0 discount rfe which i determingd by reference to market yields ot the end of
the reperting pericd on pevernmiet Sands. if the refurn on plan asset is below this rate, It will create & plan deficit. Curremily, for the plam in edia, it has 2 relatively
balirzed min of Irvestrrents in povernmant securities, and ocher debe pirumeess,

Azpet Linbiliny hepteing Risk: The plar faces the ALM risk a5 to the matching cash flow. Since the plin is invested im lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
penerally redoces ALM raiMoriality risic Since the benefies under the plan It nat payeble for 1% tire and payable 5l reticerters age anly, plan doas not hewe any
longeviy ris

The following tables summaries the components of fet baref sxpeie recognied in the statemend of profit and foss and the funded status and amounts recognized in
the bafaree uheet for the gratulty glan

FINANCE LTD.
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Ssatement of Profit and Loss
et employes banafis recopnised in the emaloyee cost
Tiar gnded 31 March | Year ended 31 March
i L] it
CUrTEn Jarvicn cost TRA1000 15,453,000
Paat Service Copat = s
Ledd/Gain from Settement - .
nberest coston net defined banefit obligation 34,000 #0000
Nt {banefit 13, 7%,000 15,485,000
Mgvamant in Other Comprehensive Income
Year enced 31 March | Year ended 31 March
1019 2018
Balance at start of year [Loss)/Gain B .
Re-rapspunirnenis on DED -
a. Actuarial loss § (gain) from changes in demographic
Ekumpliond . .
b, Astuarial kags [ [galn] from charges bn financlal assumptions (B7.000) 167,000
2. Astunsial baes [ (gain] from experience over the past year 56,0000 633000
Re-meamunsmesty on Plan Aiiers -
. Actuarial [Loas)AGaen Trom changes in financial ptions ] -
b. Return on plan akeeld eochading amount Included in net
intereit an the ret delined benedit llabilty (asaet) {1,65,000) (125}
lc. Changes In the effect of limising & net defingd banafis sdit
o the kst ceiling. . =
|Balance at end of year (Loss)/Gain 13,08,0000] L8000
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of present value of the obiig v and the falr vadue of plam assetc
s at A at Az ak
31 March 3019 31 March 2018 1 apri 2017
Dufined benelit ablipation T7,.95,000 47,70, 000 25,59,000
Fair value of plan auets 52,909,000 58.56,000 =
[ Azpet)akility recognized In the balance sheet 25,085,000 9,14,000 35,698,000
Funsed St (Sursbu[Ouficn)] [25,05.000] 15.|.4.um1r (25,69,000)
Of which, Short term lability - - 13,000
Experigncs sdjuitmanti on Man labilties (Gain) f Loss 56,000 (& 33,0001 {2.57,000)
|Excarience ad)citrenits on plan Assets Gain / {Lost) 11,65,000| [55.000) -
in the value of the defired benefit chlig; are as follows:
AR BT ad gt
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 1 Al 2017
Copeming dedined beneft oblipation 47,760,000 25,689,000 14,853,000
Cusrant Befvice cost 23,548,000 15,458,000 1E RO
Past Service Cost " - "
Loks/[Gain] from Setthement - - =
|AIEFEST CasT 351,000 217,000 L1000
Benefits paid (3330001 15.24,000) =
RAALU Al
Actuarial 831 f [galn) from changes In demagraphic
addamptions - - [5.21,000]
Actuarial ledd f [gain) from changes In financilal assumptions 87,000 |5 57,000] L.08.000
Actuarial loas f [gain) from expariencs over the past year 56,000 {633,000 (2.37,000]
Tranafer infOut 3,13.000 17.59.000 -
[Closing defined benefit obligation 77.95,000 47,70,000 25,69,000 |




Changpes im the fair value of plan Bssets soe o5 follows:
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As Az ot Asat
1 nearch 2003 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Cmening falr value of plas asiats 38,565,000 = -
Castributions by employer 106,52, 000 15,69,000 -
Transfer infout 313,000 12,59.000 .
Benedits paid {223,000 {5.24,000) .
Ieredt incame on Plan Asets 3,217,000 1,18,000 -
|Re-measuremens .
8. Actuarial jLoss|/Gain frem changpes in financial assurgtions - - ’
. Return on plan assets excluding amount included is raet
interest on the net defined benefit Bability (asset) [2,55, 000] |66,000) =
. Changes in the effect of Beniting & net Sefined beoefit arcer
o e nasat cailing . - .
Ccsing fadr valoe of plan asists 52,50,000 38,56,000 -
Actunl Beturn on Plan Assets 155000 52,000 -
Expected Emgleyer Cantrbations for the coming year 2500000 5.00.000 -
Tha peincipal assumnitions used in determining gratuity oblig: for the Comgary’s plans are shawn beloa:
fsat Asat Al
31 March 2013 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Salary Eszalation O B0 B.00
Cigcount rate .0 6.00% 30N
Atirition raze
- bMaragerial grade and above A5.00% 15.00% 15.00%
= Below manaperial grade S000% S0.00% S0.00%
|Expected rate of reburm on assets 6508 6. 30% [NA
Iervesbmants in acthee
s at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 fpeil 3047
imvestent funds with Insurance Coenpasny 106 100% %
Of wehich, Lindt Linked [ % %
O which, Treditional’ Wen-Linit Linked 100% 100 o
fssumptians
Sensithity Level
1.1 fids &) R p value of defined benefits Afat Az at Az at
chiigation at the end of the year 31 March 2009 31 March 2018 1 Al 2017
[ Ong percentage peird incruaie in discount rate 14,86, 000) (258,000} {1,84,000)
[i5) Gne percentage poing decrease in discownt rate 487,000 3,359,000 215000
[i] ©ne percentape point increase in rate of salary growth rate 4,76,000 3,323,000 2,10,000
(4] One percentage poist decrease in rote of salary growth
rate 14,35,000] (228,000} 11,90,000)
(1} One percentape point increase in withdrawal rate 18,51, [93,000] 11, 06,000)
(] D parcertage point decrease In withdrawal rate 1,57,000 95,000 1,10,000
A at As at Asat
|Eapected payment for future years 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Apeil 2047
‘Within the next 13 manths {next annual reporting period] 11.84,000 452,000 11000
Between I ard 5 years 95,77.,000 70,101,000 £5.92,000
Bevween 5 and 10 years 1,05,39,000 1.a012.000 1.5L.60.000
Total expected g2y 3,180,000 2,15,15,000 2,07,73,000 |

The welghted average duration of the defined benefic obligation as at 31er Mareh 2019 is 3 years {3108 March D018 5 3 yvears)

T fund i

by Life Co-operat

date, applicable to the paricd ower which the cblipation is 1o be wtthed,

of india. The owerall expected rabe of retum oo assets is determined baded on the madkel prices prevailing on that

The satimates of futene salary increaces, considered In achuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other nelevant factors, such a3 supply and

i Ins the employment market
The principal assumptions used in determining bave hrraer abligatians for the Company’s sling are thoem below:
Asat Az an Az at
31 March 2009 31 March 1018 1 Aguil 2017

| Crigecaant rate 6.70% 650N G, 3T
ATEntion rate

- Munagerial grade and above 15.00% 15 0004 15.00%
- Belorw marageril prade 50.00% SOLD 50.00%
Salary mscalation H.00% 00 B.00%|

The discount rate is based on the pravailing market yields of Governmnent of Indla seouarities as a1 the balance sheet date for the sstimated Term of the obligations.

The estimate of future smlary increases considened, tkoes into account the inflation, wricnty, promation, increnents and other relevant facton.
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FINANCE LTD.

Motes bo Financial $tatements
[&8 amgands arg In indlan Bupess, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 28; Change bn Babil isbng feom fi

Changes in liabies arising from Tinascing activities

Particaars At 31 Manzh 2038 Cagh Flaws Other Ad at 31 Masch 018
Borromings athar this debt secwri 3,85,80,30.505 6,408,431 [1,06,60, 136} 346,059,902
[Fotal_ 2.86.80,30,626 60.,4085,431 DD0ED16 | 3605850 |

Particulais Az ot 1 April FOLT Cash Flows Other Az at 31 March 2018
Berrowings other than debt secunties 129,639,201 57.74,60,880 158,21, 253) 2,186,80.90, 36
[Tots! 2.29.63.91.200 57.74,60.680 5811, 258 2.06.80.50,608 |

Note 29: Contingent liabivties, it B |cating arrangEmEALs

[} Contingens Liskadities
Thare ks NIl condingmnt labiiey cndstanding as at March 31, 2019 {March 51, 2018: M, Apdl 1, 2007: N

8] Commibments
Thens ke Nil capital commitment cutstanding ss ot March §1, D000 (March 31, 2008: Kil, April 1, 2007 Kil)

(€] Leare Disclosures
Diparating Leae :
Tha Company hat rot antered into ary ror il bl ing leada W For office prarises with & ks term of 5 years. Thane sre 0 restrictions placed upon the company by sntiring
itz thete leades.
Azt
Paniculars Muarch 31, 2019

Futue Misisvrs lease ramtal payments
Lk Ehited i the W off peadit and loas for th pairkod a7 5251
Lease patyments dues
Mat later thar one vear LIGILATY
Later than cna yesr but not greater than S yeass 57590, 104
Mare than five years 1,37 B 281

920,05, 614
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FINANCE LTD.

‘Minsppurss Home Feancs Limdted

(Farmerdy H Finanes Pivabe Limfted)
O 1 UESSINL 20 EALEOEI T

ot 1o Financlal Simtements R

(A amaunds are in badian Rupeey, uriess ot rwie mated}

Kote 32 Retated Farty Diiclesures
Relatinnstip Mame of the party
Viplding Company Wlanappuram Franoe Limied
Pabow Fubdlay Airand Migred Limbes (F v, dairad Microty Privite Limised)®
blanapauram nsuranee Brokery Lmhes®
Munagpuram Camatich dnd Conpitants LimZed
Ky FranBgEmEnt pErshne [N W W, P Randalemad [Chairman)®
At Jeevanidss Harayan [Manpiag Direcior with efect from fone 1, 3017)
M, Subhash Semae JCED with effect frem Juse 13, 2017)
At Rloke Choaal (G0 18 June 8, 2017
Ietr, Vigead Pavel (OFD)
Bt Sreedieps |Cempany Secretany]
Peut Esaleysant Banafs Fan LT B ppruraes Gratuty TRot

* Mo frangactions during the vear

Halstad Party trastactions during she year;

|

Particulety 1 panck 70w 11 March 2018 & gl 3T ¥ March I013 31 Miarch 2008 IL March DHLE 31 March 2018

Rent
M Bezrdn Fassse Limited 33,0725 LEER - L L b x

Oiher Expenses
Manapursm Founce Limited 4,00 875 Lnar s E . E -

M feevandas Maravan ! . . 1,00,00,088 HL33400 " N
ir. Sulhanh Samae e - - LI5.50.794 EIATE T - -
B Srmediven - = B 2018232 15.55,097 H ~
wr. Vipul Patsl - - - 488272 52,087 T =
. Aok Goaal N - - - LRENH] . -

Temmder ol Floed supets
Kanappuram Firanoe Lmined - . 5,19,389 - . . -

Lioam ewhan drers
Mansgpuram Finance Limeed 1,91,00.00,000 24,3000, 000 18,00,00,000 . - . N

Lon Rgpaid 1o
tansgpuram Finanos Limited 2,61,80.00,000 24,54,00,000 LA,50,00,000 . . . :

Inleret expunsn
Wanageuram Financs Limted 2,78,43.403 E7.123 - - s £ a

Isdu of Equity Shane Capital
Rasnagparam Fingnos Limted 1.00,50,00,000 = - - £ =

4 314,62, 500 13,58 000

= §.34,000 .

Fansppurmm Fognoe LimRed 3, TE 956 = L6 - - a a




A\

#MANAPPURAM 3olN2

FINANCE LTD.

MEnappuram Home Finance Lisnited

[Formezly Manappurem Home Fissace Private Limited)
CIN : USSH230LI010PLE0R%0 TS

Ketei o Financial Statemeats

[&ll arsaunts are in Inclan Rugess, unbess othersise staed)

Cemnp jom of kiry ' N "
Yirar dnded 51 Yoar ended 31
Fasticelars March 231% Mlarch 2018
Salary 2,76,00,378 2.37,29,736
| Short-term employee benaifis 3,63,000 2,78,000
Cahar Long Term Benefit Plan BT.000 158,000
Peat Employment Benedits 12,5700 18,7720
Share Baded Payments 50,5450 1,59.59.539
17221749 4.20,02.265 |
tigte 31: Capital
Capital Management
The peimary obj of the Company's capital B % policy are to ensune that tee Company phad with Ik imgcdnd capital requi and maintains strong credit ratings and

Pt lt¥ry cagital raticd in order to poupport B3 buskwess and W maximise shareholder valos,

The Company masages its capital § and makes ad) to it according to changes in economic conditions and the rak charectariatics of i astivities, In crder to maintain oo adjust the
capial structure, the Compaty miy sdjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return cagital 1o skarehalders of lisue capital securitier. Ho chanpes have been made to the objectives,
pofiche and procedind lrem the previous years. However, Brey are under coestant review By th Baard,

Az at A5 at As at
Q_Mg_mn 33 Mauch 2009 21 March 2018 1 Aped 2017
Comman Egaity Tierd (CET2) capital B1ELN EFL 45.02%
Ottt Thee 2 capital instruments 05N 05 C.BON
Tatal capital EL.32H A0 26628
Azt Asat Az at
Regalstory capital 1 Mmrch 3009 | 31 Msrch 2016 | 2 apell 2017
CETY capinal 153,53, 77.000 50,83, 27 000 92.73,65,000
Total capital 194.11.22000 | 913593000 93.55,82,000

Regulstery cagital conglits of CIT 1 capial, which comprises share capital, share prerelum, retained earnisgs Including current year profit leas sccrued dividends . Certsin adjustments are macle fo ind
Ad—based retults and reserves, as prescribed by the Natosal Mousing Banc of India.
Bt Bb Fair Vilwe Messud et

Tha carrying wihee ared fair vabue of Tinancial lnssurmesia by cabagories ane aa follzen

‘Carrying 'dalan Fair Valew

At A4 Bt As L A4 s
Paitsiular AL Mardh 2318 BE Maach 204 3 Rl 2007 B Maich HLd FE Mareh 7038 8 &gl 7037
Firarisl atiets
Cash aral ash swhvalents pLEE LR 37032880 9,55,21.387 182405, 797 3,702,080 BENLLENT
Lorg 518586285 3,68 38 93,572 3,07,50,44.083 5,50,90, 06,033 4.4757,00,m7 115, Te 0,500
ks Finasdisl suiste 4.16,53,937 118.08,788 1481508 4,26,50,557 1,153,298, 784 11852524
Tezal firanial s S 51,0003, 1% 5781856, 235 18,0408 508 5,723,779 452,50, 54 680 186,59 81,230
Furiareail Lasl it
Pavablet : 2095508 BC31EL BB AN E0E LR ]
Borrirwingi jsther than deb sscurity) LR LS B8 EC, 50,830 22WEIELIT TAEIO AT 3791346075 IR S ETD
har Fnardial Babdiied LA7.84.020 1,484,213, 168 976,651 LETEEILD LA TLIER IR
Fanancis] Liskilosy ey 1E305, BE,81% 2904152738 340,71,02,152 18147 AR AR 134.88,07,310

That rranapersenl aviessed fnandial assets encep? bean pertials, isveatmest in pquity thares and invsrsmant in mutual fardi; and fisandisl KshBies Sapt Bemaengt SRR camte Thirr LAy Brawt Legily dee 10 thaet s
maturitien of thess innameaty,
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HManappuram Home Finance Lisited

(Formsgrty Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIN : UBSSIKLINIOPLONASITS

Neded to Fislncial Statements

|All armounts ase in Indisn Bupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote §3: Risk Management

Risk ks an integral pae of the Company's & and sound risk g i erizieal 106 the vutoris of Healthy Business Model as a financial Intermediary, the
Company it exposed to risks that are partioular 1o it lending and the erviranment within which it operates and primarily includes eredit, bauidity ard murke? riks, The

Company has o risk mankgernent golicy which covers risk asscoated with the financial assets and Babilites. The risk masagemant solicy i approved by the Board of
Direcioes.

The Company has identified and implemanted compreheraive policies and procedures bo assess, maniter and manige fik theoughout the Comaany, The risk management
proceid i conti by reviewed, improved and sdagted in the changing risk icesario and the aglity of the risk i 7 Process 4 mordoned and r e for its
aporopr irs thas changing risk landscape. The process of contiruous evaluation of risks includes midng meck of the risk lindicape on an event-driven basis.

The Compary has an elabarate prece far sk management. Major risks kdentified by th Busingsses and funstions s sptematically sddrened by implementing
required preventive, detectie and comective controls, ard thiough mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Credit Risk

Credit risk |5 the risk of ioas that may essur fram defaults by cur Borrowens under our loan agresments. In order 1o address credit risk, we have stringent credit risk
sisessmerd policies for dient selection. The Credit palicy is approves by Board af Directar and changet in credit policy is placed before the board for spproval.

Meazures such ks werifying chent details, online documentation and the usage of credit bureaa data o pet inferrmation on past eredit behaviour alse suppliment the effar
Fer cantaining oredit risk. There is a exbacsthve client dus dilipence process in plese which includes verification theough bosh internal employees of the comparry and
external due dilgencs agency,

W alis Sallow a sysbermatic methodology in the opering of new bBranches, which takes ints aceount fastan such ai demand Tor sredit in the sfea; income and market
potential; ard sozig-cooncenic ind law and order risks in the propoded anea. Purther, our dient due dilgence procedunes encompass various layers of checks, designed to
aEseis 1he guality of the proposal and to confirm that if meets the strechured gredit v Baid dowen by cormpaeny’s cradin policy snd prosu,

Ims grdar to Fitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the company makes reserves biis the sapected crede ki [FOL) model for e cutitinding |oans &i
balance sheet date.

The below discussion describes the Company'l Sparcach for ing imgal a3 stated in the significant accounting policies.

The Company considers a financial inmrument defaulied aed theredone Stagn 3 [credit impaired) for [CL calculations In all cases when the borrower becomes S0 days past
due &0 i conlraciual paymenis.

Ad b pact ol b qual of vt a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that ray imdicate unliteness 1o pay. Wisen such
ewents ocour, the Company carefilly considers whethsr the svent should resadt in resting the customer as defaulted and thevefone smessed 2 Stage 3 for ECL caloulations
ow whither Stage 2 b appropriate.

Expaosurs at Defauls [EAD)

The autstanding balance at the neporting date Is considered as EAD by the Company, Considering that the PD determined sbeve fntany in amount ot defauly, there b ns
t o L EAD,

The Comgany L3es higtzrical information whene available to determine PO Considering the different products and schermes, the Comparry has bifurcated its loan portfolia
inta warious pools. The PD s caliculated using | | NFA k idering fresh slippage of part 3 years,

Baned on it review of macro-economic developments and economic outheoi, the Company has asseised 1haf na adjuitment B requined for temparary overliya to
determine qualitathve impact on s PO 03 02 March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

Asat31March | Asat3iMarch | AsandAped
Poals 015 2018 17
0.55% LU [
3.00% £.59% L58% |
DATH LEES 0ITH
2.70% .k 0.
S.EMM‘ITIMM&THp 2.94% 1.96% 200
I8 Lae 1.47% LGN _ 0.77%

Loss Ghven Default

The Company determires ity recovery rates by snalysing the recevery wends cver different periods of time after a lcan has defsuhted. Based on its analyiis of collateral

valuaticn, the Complny Rad acsessed that significant recovenes happens within 2 years froem the year of defacds, In estimating LGD, the company reviews macro-soonomic
developments taking place in the etonsemy.

Aot Bl March | As 2131 March #sat 1 April
rarfelis 019 018 2017
1] Ceratrugtion I0.84% 0.06% IL01%
2] R 0 U Houss gm 20.068 21.01%
3.} Homse Improemant 20.24% 20,068 I1.01%
4.] Harms Extengicn 0844 006N 1.01%
5.] Balance Tranufer & Top-Up 0N 20.06% 2L01%
5.) LAF 20844 A0.06% 11,018
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Mellaris st Howeor Fnancd Limited
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Marappuram Home Finanoe Limited

[Formerly Manappuram Home Finance Private Limited)
CIM @ UE5523KL2010PLO03S1TS

Motes to Financal Statements

LAl armourts e in indian Bupess, unless otherwise stated)

HNote 34: First-time Adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2009, are the Brst financial stetements the Company has prepared in socordance with Ind AS. For
periads up to and induding the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Companies [Accounting Standard] Rules, 2006 [Indian GAAR or prindous GAAR)

Agcordingly, the Company has prepared Snandal stiements which comply with Ind AS applicable for pericds ending on 31 March 2019, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2028, as described in the summary of significant accourting pelicies. In préparing these
fimancial statements, the Company's openang balance sheet was prepared &5 81 1 April 2017, the Company's date of transition 1o Ind AS. This note explaing the
principal adjustments made by the Company in restating 5 Indian GAAP finandial statements, Induding the balance sheet a3 2t 1 April 2017 and the financial
staTements as a1 and for the year ended 31 March 2008,

Exemplions appbed;
Ind A5 101 allgws first-time adepters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the
follgwing moemgptions:

> A first-time adopter may opt 1o continue with the carrying value for all af its PPE a8 recognised in s previous GAAP Enandial s d d cost at the transiti
date. However, It makes necessary adjussments far decommissboning liabiities to be included In the carrying value of PPE. The Company has used ind AS 101
exemplion and continued with the carrying value as recignised in previous GAAP as deemed cast en the transition date,

= Ind AS 109 requires a finandial asset to be measured at amortised cost if it meets two tedts that deal with the nature of the business that holds the assets and
the nature of the cash Nlows arising on thase assets. A first-time adopter must assess whether a financial asset meets the conditions on the basis of the facts
and droumstances that exist at the date of transition to ind AS.

Ind A% 101 &lsa containg mandsory exteption related 1o classification of financial asset whith states that conditions for classifying financial assets to be tested
en the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition 1o Ind A% instesd of the date on which it becommes panty 1o the contract.

The Company has opted 1o classify all financial assets and liakilities based oo facts and crgemstances exdsting on transition date.

= As per Ind AS 101 - An entity shall spply the exception to the retrospective application in case of “Derecognition of financdial assets and financial liabilties
wherein a first-time adopter shall apply the Derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transections ocpering on or after the date of transition
to Ind ASs. For eamaple, If a first time adopter derecognised non-derivative financial assets of nor-derivative fingnciad liabilithes in agrordance with its previous
GAAP as a result of & transaction that cocurred before the date of transition to Ind ASs, it shall nat recognise thase assets and liabilities in accordance with ind
A% [unless they qualify for recognition as & result of & later trarsaction or event),

The Company has opted not to re-evaluate financial assets derecognized in the past including those sald to asset restructuring companies.

Estimates:

The estimates at 1 Apeil 2017 and at 31 March 2018 are consistent with thase made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAFP (after adjustments to
reflect any differences In accounting polickes) apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did not require estmation:

> Amortisstion of processing fees ret of expenses using effective interess e

= Impainment of financial assets based on expected oradit loss model

The estienates ussd by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind A% reflect conditions at 1 April 2017, the date of transition 1o Ind A5 and
& of 31 March 2018

Equity recondliation for 1 Apsil 2007

Particulars Privviowt GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Firangial Assets .
Cash and cash eguivalents 9,69,11,357 . 6,69,11,357
Loans 3,120,584 38,480 £5,13,94,547) 3,07,50,44,033
Other financal assets 117,322,220 (2,60.694] 114,561,526
Taral [A) 3,23,50,72,057 [5,15,55,141) 3.18.34,16,516
Nen-finantial assets
Cudrent ta sisets [net)
Deferred tax axsets [net) . - =
Property, plant and equipment 1,41,56,956 - 1,42, 56956
Daher Intangible assets 4,256,953 - 4,16953
Capital work-in-progress 43,213,540 . 49,231,540
Other non-finandal assets 1,05,33 480 {61,08,132) 44,25.348
Total (8) 3,01,40,523 [61,08,132) 2,40,32.797

Total Assets [A+B) 3.26,52,12,586 [5,77,63,273) 3,20,74,48,713
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Liabllities and eguity
Linbilities
Financial Habilities
Payables 4B B4 BTG - 4B, B4.876
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,30,24,99,333 [51,08,132] 1,29,63,91,201
Crther financiad liabdnias 25,756,662 = 29, 76,662
Tatal () 2,31,03,60,871 161,08,132) 2,30,42,52,739
Kon-financial liabilities
Pravissons 1,65,59,599 (1,16,32,565] 45,27,034
Other non-financial liabalities 43 96,544 - 43,965,844
Tatal (D) 2,09,56,443 [1,15,32,565] 93,725,878
Tatal Liskilities [C+D) 2.33,13,17,314 Mﬁj E!'I“ET
Egquity Share Cagital 1,00,00,00,000 - 1,00,00,00,000
Other Equity 16.61,04,324) 4,00,22,576] (10,61, 26, 504)
Total aquity 93,38,95,672 4,00,22,57€] 89,38,73,096
Total liabilitles ard equity ﬂsuzm w EE,HA!.?LI
" The Indisn GAAR figures have been reclassified 1o canfonm 19 Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
Equity reconciliation fer 31 March 2018

Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind A5
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,70,22, 880 = 370,232,880
Laans 3,75,91,64,304 (7,55,70,732) 3,68,34,93,572
Dther financial asset 113,328,154 {B380) 1,13,29,784
Tatal (4] 3,80,75,25,348 [7.56,79,112) 3,73,18,25,235
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 22,73,100 22,73,100
Deferred tax xssets (net) . =
Praperty, plant and equipment 13171088 1,57,71,058
Cether Intangible assets 74,09, 165 - 74,089,165
Other non-finandal assets 1,37,71,552 58,21 255) 79.50.297
Tatal (B) 3,72,24,915 (58,21,255) 3,14,03.660
Total Assets {A+B) 1,50.263 T6,32,49
Linbilities and equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payalles 80,592,831 - 80,952,831
Barrowings (other than debit securities) 2873851831 [58,23,255) 1.86,80,30,625
Crther firandial Eability IM'.I.!_.!._GI = 144,13, 168
Total [€) 2,89,63,57,880 (58,21,255) 2,89,05,36,625
Man-financial liabilities
Pravisions 1,64,50,016 (1,30,92. 471) 33,57,545
Other non-financial liabilyy 61,00,120 - 61,00,12:0
Tatal (D) 2,25,50,136 [1,30,92,471) 94,57,665
Total Liabilities [C+D) E:ﬂﬁ 016 [1,89,13,726) 7,89,99,94.290
Egpuity Share Capital 1,00,00,00,000 . 1,00,00,00,000
Crher Equity {7.41,57,752) mﬁlﬂ (13,67,44,353)
Total equity 92,58.,42,248 16,25, 86,641) 86,32,55,607
Tatal liabilities and equity ME 254 E 15,00,367) 3,75,32,49 857

* The Indian GAAF figures have been redassified to conform o Ind &5 presentation requirements for the purpase of this note,
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Prafit reconciliation for the year grded 31 March 2018

[ Particulars Privious GAAP Adjustments Ined &5

Revenue from operations

Interest income 49,68,67,097 115,49,300 49,53,17,797
Ket gain on feir value changes 37,71,673 - 37,71L673
Cther aperating ingome 1,60,28,029 = 1,60,28,929
Total revenue from operations 51,66,67.699 115,409,300 51,51,18,353
Total Income 51,56,67,699 (15,439,300 51,51,18.353
Experes

Finance costs 22,87,80,282 - 11,87,80,182
Employes benefits expenses 17.93.82,805 1,39,18 515 15,32,01,320
Depreciation, amertisaticn and impasnment B4,31, 346 - 84,31,345
Other expenses 11.09,71,451 2,10,14, 765 13,19,26,225
Total expenses 52.74,55,854 3,49,33, 280 56,23,99,174
Prafit /[lcss) before exceptional items and tax {1,07,98,195) [3,54,82,580) 14,72,80,775)
Exceptional items = = -
Prafit/[loss] before tax (1,07,98,195) [3,54,82,580) [8,72,80,775)
Tax Expense:

(1} Current tax 31,089,289 - L2
[2} MAAT Credit Emitlement (31,09,289) - [31,09,283)
(2} Deferred tax (credit) d 2 =
[3} Earlier years adjustments (27, 44,770} - [27,44,770)
Prafit/ [loss] for the year 120,53,425) 13.64,82,580) (4,45, 36,005}
Orther Comprahensive Incame

(i1 ltemns that will nat be dassified to peafa or loss s - =

(] Income tax relating to iterns that will not be redassified to profit or loss =
Subtotal (&)

(1] Fesmis that will be dassified to prafit or loss

(5] Income tau relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B

Other Comprahensive Income

Total camprahensive incame [80,53,425) [3,64.82.580) 2.45,36,005)

® The Indiarn GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform 1o Ind AS presentation requirements for the parpose of this note.




N

# MANAPPURAM gyle])'] 3

FINANCE LTD.

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2047 and 31 March 2008 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
1.EM

a Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs charged to customers was recognised upfront while under Ind A5, such costs are incuded in the initial recognition
amaount of financial asset and recognized a5 interest income using the effective irterest method. Consequently loan 1o customers on date of transision date
have decreased by Rs.2.20,87,912. The impact of Rs. 50,156,200 for the ended 31 March HE has been taken ta Fraft and bass.

L. Recording of impairment as per ECL

Under IAAR, asse provisioning was computed based on the NHB guidefines. Under Ind A5, the impalrment is computed based on Expected Credit Loss model,
This has resulted in an addittonal mpairmens provision of Re. 17841727 on the date of transition to Ind AS the impact of which was 1aken 1o retained
eamings, Impact of Rs. 1,85,22,651 for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been taken to the Profit and loas account.

3. Interest income on NPA

Under IGAAP, interest income on NPA was recognised on cash badis. However, under Ind AS the interest income on NPA |5 recorded based on EIR and ECL
prevision is provided on the same. As & result of recording interest Income an NPA, the retained EArNiNES a5 on transition date has increased by R, 3,95,151 .
The impact of Rs, 35,64,506 far the year ended 31 March 2018 has besn taken to Profit and loss.

4. Fair valuation of security deposit

The Compary has given interest free security deposit in the form of remtal advance far branches taken on lesse. Such Gepasits have been fair valued under Ind
AS. A3 a result of the falr valuation, there has been a reduction in the balamce af securnity deposits to the extent of Rs. 46,70,837 impact of which was taken to
retained earnings a5 on 1 Agril 2007, The impact of Rs. 11,15,898 dor the year ended 31 March 2018 has been taken in ProSt and logs, Alss the Company has
ameortised deferred leass remtal as on 31 March 2007 to the extent of Bs, 43,10,133 , the impact of which was taken to retained sarings &% on 1 April 2017, The
impact of Rs. 867,585 for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been taken in Profit and loss.

5. Fair valuation of ESOP .
Shares of Manappuram Finence Limited [Heiding Company] are provided to the employees of the company, Under IGAAF, ESOP was not recorded by the
company. However, under Ind AS, these shares need to be recarded using Fair value method, As @ result of this, there was an impact of ESO® on the transition

date of Rs. 89,73,015 which has lead to reduction in the resained carmings. The impacs for the year ended 31 March 2018 is Rs. 1,34, 71465 which has been
taken 1o the profit and loss.

Other comprehensive intome

Under Indian GAAR, the Company has nat presented other comprehensive Income (001} separately, Hencs, it has recandlled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit
or profit or less as per Ind AS. Funther, Indian GAAP profit or bass is reconcibed 15 taral comprehensive income as per ind AS.

Swtement of cash flows
The transition from Indian GAAR to Ind AS has not had & material Impadt on the statement of cash Raws.

As per NHE circular NHE (ND)DRS/Paliey Circular No.B3/2017-18 dated June 14, 2018 the follpwing declosures are a5 per the extant proviskans of Natianal
Housing Bank Act 1987and Housing Finance Campanies (NHE) Directions 2000 Inchuding framework on Prudential Nerms, and other relsted Circulars ete., issued
in this regard by the NHB from time 1o time.

Mote: 35

Derivatives:

There are na derivatives aken during the current and previcus yesr,

MNete: 55
Detalls of Single Barrower Limit {S6L) / Group Borrower Limit (GHL) exceaded by the NBFC:
The Comparny has nat excerded the Single barrower and group borrower lirits

Mote: 37
Prawrisions and C fes
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Prowvision towards NPA 1,09,05.871 2,39,92 485
Provision on assets held for sale 5840802 =
Prowision for Standard Assets 15,24,183 20,548,812
Provision far Banus 19,61,023 -
Provigion for Gratuity and Lesve Encashment 18,55 000 9,14,000
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Nate: 38
Draw down from Resenves

Dexails of draw dowwn from reserves, if any, are provided In Note 15 to these financial statements.

Naotes: 39
I} Conpentration of Advances

Particulars A5 at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2012
Tetal advances to twnty largest befrowers 7.51,93,354 8,31,00,230
|Percentage of acvances 1o twenty largest borrowers to total achances of the Compary 1455 1.08%
) Concentration of

Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As gt 31 March 2018
Tolal expasure to twenty largest boerowers/oustomers 7.60,64,820 8,31,08,230
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customerns to total exposure of the
Company on berrawers/customers 1.31% 1.32%
il Concentration of NPA's
[ Particulars | Asat3iMarch201% |  Asat31 March 2018
Total exposure to tog ten NPA accounts | 2.96,53,410 | 3,564,527 BE4
v} Suctor-wise NPAs

Particulary As #% 31 March 2019 As 3t 31 March 2018
A) Housing Loans:
1. Individuals 16,34, 88,299 15,52,28,12%
2. Builders/Project Loan - B
3. Corporates
4, Others =
B} Men-Housing Loans
1. individuals 5,64,08, 682 1,95,81,935
2. BuildersProject Loan - -
3. Cofparates - .
4, Others - -
V) Mowvement of NPAs

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2009 31 March 2008
1) Mt NPAs 1o Met Advances ($) 3.07% 4.00%
1] Movement of NPAs [Gross)
a) Dipening balance 17,B8,10,061 4,50,66,522
b Addition during the year 9,45,44.372 13,79,99,913
c) Reduction during the year 7,38,57.453 53,56,774
d] Closing balance 19,98,96,980 17,88,70,061
11N Mgwement of NPAS (Met]
a) Dgening balsnce 14,79,07 538 3,91, 56,854
b] Addition during the year B.07,02,716 11,72,53,924
¢} Reduction during the year 7.005,25 668 85,489,270
d] Clesing balance - 15,80,84, 586 14,79,07,518
V) Movement of provisions for NPAs [excluding pravisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 3,09,02,523 69,10,038
b] Provision made during the year 1,42,41,656 2,39,92,485
c) Write-off'write-back of excess provisions 33,31,785 -
d] Cleging balance 4,1&12.394 3.09,02,513
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Notes: 40
Cust Campl

Particulars As ok 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
Na, of complaints received during the year 58
No. of complaints redressed during the year ]
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

]
65

Note: 41
Mizcellaneous

i} Registration obtained from other financial sector regulatars
Thie Company is not registered with any other financial sector regulators,

ii} Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalties (Adverse Comments have been imposed by NHE and cther Regulstons during the year enced 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

iii] Securitization
Company does not hive ary Secrutisation transaction.

v} Exposure to Capital Market
Company do not have Exposure to Capltal Maret

v} Datails ef financing of parent company products
Company do not have finencing of parent company products.

Wi} Imvestments
Company does ot have ary Investanent a3 an 315t March 2019

wii) Overseas Aisets
Company does not have amy Overseas Asges

viii) Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored [which ane required to be consolidated as per accounting Nonms) Naime of the SPV spansored
Company does not have Off-balance Sheet SPVS sponscred (which are required to be consalidated a5 per accounting Morms).

Iu) Loan agalnst Geld
Company does not have any loans) sdvances against Gold.

%) Unhedged Foreign Currency
The company does not have unhedged forsign currency Bs an répening dite.

wi] Immovable Property
The company does not have "Fixed Assets”™ (mmewvalle) of its cwn,

wii] Froud Reporting
There is il Fraud Reported during the Financal Year 2018-19.

xiii) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

[ 1 Credit rating agency Ratings asgigned

Fund based term loan
|Fl.1r|d based cash eredit Brickwork BWH A+

|Fund based term loan CARE Rating CARE Ak~ Stable

Long term bari lpan CRISI CRESIL A+rtable
cp E CRIIL AL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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